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A. Comment/response matrix 
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C.   Notices 

  



SH 249 
GRIMES COUNTY  

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 

The Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) will conduct a public hearing on Thursday, June 30, 

2016, at the Navasota Junior High School, located at 9038 State Highway 90 South in Navasota, Texas.  

The purpose of the hearing is to present the proposed preliminary design for the construction of SH 249 

from FM 1774 to SH 105 in Grimes County and to receive public comment.  Displays of the design will 

be available for viewing at 5:30 p.m. in the cafeteria with the formal hearing commencing at 6:30 p.m. in 

the gym located across the hall within the same building.  Parking is available at both the junior high 

school and adjacent high school campuses.   
 

The proposed project would construct a two-lane roadway with shoulders and a passing lane in alternating 

directions within right-of-way that would accommodate future widening to a four-lane divided roadway.  

The typical right-of-way width would be 400-450 feet. The proposed two-lane roadway would be tolled.  

In addition, two-lane, one-way, non-tolled frontage roads would be constructed along approximately five 

miles of the proposed project (from Urbanosky Lane to west of CR 304). Approximately 623-658 acres of 

new right-of-way would be required.   No displacements would be required.   
 

Information about TxDOT’s right-of-way acquisition procedures, the TxDOT Relocation Assistance 

Program, as well as information about the tentative schedule for right-of-way acquisition and construction 

may be obtained at the hearing, from the TxDOT Bryan District Office and at 

http://www.txdot.gov/inside-txdot/forms-publications/consultants-contractors/publications/row.html. The 

project would cross the 100-year floodplains associated with Mill Creek and a tributary of Beason Creek.  

The project would also cross numerous creeks and streams; however, no wetlands have been identified 

within the new right-of-way.  
 

Exhibits showing the proposed project’s location and design will be displayed at the hearing.  The 

Environmental Assessment for the project will also be available for review.  These and other information 

about the proposed project are on file and available for inspection Monday through Friday between the 

hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. at the TxDOT Bryan District Office located at 2591 N. Earl Rudder 

Freeway in Bryan, Texas. Project information is also available at www.txdot.gov/inside-

txdot/projects/studies/bryan/sh249.html.  
 

All interested persons are invited to attend this public hearing.  Verbal and written comments relative to 

the proposed project may be presented at the hearing.  Written comments may also be submitted by mail 

to TxDOT Bryan District Office, Attn: SH 249 – Grimes, 2591 N. Earl Rudder Freeway, Bryan, Texas 

77803, or by e-mail to BRY-SH249-GrimesCo@txdot.gov.  Comments must be received or postmarked 

on or before Thursday, July 14, 2016, to be included in the official hearing record.  
 

The public hearing will be conducted in English. Spanish interpretation will be provided.  Persons 

interested in attending the public hearing who have other special communication or accommodation needs 

are encouraged to contact TxDOT’s Bryan District Office at (979) 778-2165 at least five working days 

prior to the hearing.  TxDOT will make every reasonable effort to accommodate these needs. 







the blood drive competition 
anyway.”

Children and adults alike 
were able to tour the various 
vehicles on display during the 
event, including a Texas Rang-
ers armored personnel carrier. 
One young man even tried to 
hold a Department of Public 
Safety riot shield and found 
that muscles are needed just as 
much as heart to be a fi rst re-
sponder.

When asked, many young 
participants said that the land-
ing and lift off of the CHI St. 
Joseph air med helicopter was a 
favorite sight.

“It was really, really windy,” 
said the daughter of Volunteer 
Coordinator Curtis Eckman.

Other sights included 
demonstrations on the impor-
tance of safety belts in vehicles 
during accidents. The simula-
tion had dummies placed into 
the “cab” of a vehicle that then 
proceeded to perform a rollover 
maneuver. The dummies were 
placed in the vehicle with seat 
belts and without. The dummy 
without a seat belt was ejected. 
Adult viewers were just as im-
pressed as their children with 
one watcher saying, “I am now 
a fi rm believer in seat belts at 
all times.”

During the event, the Texas 
Department of Criminal Jus-
tice showcased the talents of 
one of the department’s scent 
dogs. The bloodhound tracked 
a TDCJ employee through the 
crowd, over the lawn and into 
the fi re department trailer in 
which he had been hiding. The 
dog was effi cient and on task, 
regardless of the many bystand-
ers watching him perform his 
duty. 

Crowds gathered again for 
a fi re simulation put on by the 
Navasota Fire Department. The 
fi refi ghters had two plywood 
buildings, each roughly the size 
of a small room, which con-
tained a mattress, couch and 
curtains. The fi rst building was 

unprotected by fi re retardation 
measures and the second had a 
simulated sprinkler system.

The fi re department then lit 
the rooms on fi re with a pro-
pane torch to show how quickly 
a fi re can get out of hand and 
the importance of fi re preven-
tion measures, such as sprinkler 
systems.

The unit with no sprinkler 
was completely destroyed af-
ter just 3 minutes, the average 
response time from initial 911 
call to fi rst responders on scene. 
The second unit with the sprin-
kler system was still standing 
as a building but smoke, fi re 
and the water damaged the 
contents. However, those who 
gathered in awe agreed that 
possessions were easier to re-
place than the structure itself.

The inaugural First Respond-
er’s Day was held on the fi nal 
day of National Police Week, 
but the occasion was open to all 
Grimes County First Respond-
er’s and emergency teams.

According to Navasota Chief 
of Police Justin Leeth, First Re-
sponder’s Day was created with 
the belief in holding the affair 
annually to allow Grimes Coun-
ty fi rst responders and citizens 
to socialize in a non-emergency 

and family friendly setting.
Many area fi re fi ghters will 

be looking for a second chance 
at claiming the tug o’ war title 
during next year’s event. 

The city of Navasota Police 
Department still has a limited 
number of shirts and ballcaps 
still available commemorating 
the event for $15 each. If in-
terested stop by the police de-
partment from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m. 
Monday through Friday to pur-
chase.
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SH 249
GRIMES COUNTY 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

The Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) will conduct a public hearing on Thursday, June 
30, 2016, at the Navasota Junior High School, located at 9038 State Highway 90 South in Navasota, 
Texas.  The purpose of the hearing is to present the proposed preliminary design for the construction 
of SH 249 from FM 1774 to SH 105 in Grimes County and to receive public comment.  Displays 
of the design will be available for viewing at 5:30 p.m. in the cafeteria with the formal hearing 
commencing at 6:30 p.m. in the gym located across the hall within the same building.  Parking is 
available at both the junior high school and adjacent high school campuses.  

The proposed project would construct a two-lane roadway with shoulders and a passing lane in 
alternating directions within right-of-way that would accommodate future widening to a four-lane 
divided roadway.  The typical right-of-way width would be 400-450 feet. The proposed two-lane 
roadway would be tolled.  In addition, two-lane, one-way, non-tolled frontage roads would be 
constructed along approximately � ve miles of the proposed project (from Urbanosky Lane to west of 
CR 304). Approximately 623-658 acres of new right-of-way would be required.   No displacements 
would be required.  

Information about TxDOT’s right-of-way acquisition procedures, the TxDOT Relocation 
Assistance Program, as well as information about the tentative schedule for right-of-way acquisition 
and  construction may be obtained at the hearing, from the TxDOT Bryan District Of� ce and at                                  
http://www.txdot.gov/inside-txdot/forms-publications/consultants-contractors/publications/row.html. 
The project would cross the 100-year � oodplains associated with Mill Creek and a tributary of 
Beason Creek.  The project would also cross numerous creeks and streams; however, no wetlands 
have been identi� ed within the new right-of-way. 

Exhibits showing the proposed project’s location and design will be displayed at the hearing.  
The Environmental Assessment for the project will also be available for review.  These and other 
information about the proposed project are on � le and available for inspection Monday through 
Friday between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. at the TxDOT Bryan District Of� ce located 
at 2591 N. Earl Rudder Freeway in Bryan, Texas. Project information is also available at                            
www.txdot.gov/inside-txdot/projects/studies/bryan/sh249.html. 

All interested persons are invited to attend this public hearing.  Verbal and written comments relative 
to the proposed project may be presented at the hearing.  Written comments may also be submitted by 
mail to TxDOT Bryan District Of� ce, Attn: SH 249 – Grimes, 2591 N. Earl Rudder Freeway, Bryan, 
Texas 77803, or by e-mail to BRY-SH249-GrimesCo@txdot.gov.  Comments must be received or 
postmarked o n or before Thursday, July 14, 2016, to be included in the of� cial hearing record. 

The public hearing will be conducted in English. Spanish interpretation will be provided.  Persons 
interested in attending the public hearing who have other special communication or accommodation 
needs are encouraged to contact TxDOT’s Bryan District Of� ce at (979) 778-2165 at least � ve 
working days prior to the hearing.  TxDOT will make every reasonable effort to accommodate these 
needs.

The inaugural First Responder’s Day was held Saturday in 
downtown Navasota. The event featured local law enforcement, 
fire and EMS personnel serving Grimes County. Children and 
adults were involved in the interactive event designed to bring 
the organizations closer to the community.

Examiner photos by Nicole Shupe

will now “Learn with 
Osmo” after she re-
ceived a second grant for 
$198.“Osmo” is a new ap-
plication for the iPad that 
uses refl ective artifi cial 
intelligence to foster social 
and physical interaction 
and creative and critical 
thinking.

Dana Wagner will be 
embracing “Creativity Un-
der Construction” with her 
check of $981.30. The pro-
gram uses mind games to 
enhance math, science and 
social curriculum through 
hands-on games and ac-
tivities where students will 
have to work collabora-
tively and use communica-
tion to solve problems.

Brittni Canizaro’s 
students will be “Utiliz-
ing 21st Century Skills” 
in the classroom when 
her $619.68 pays for the 
eWriter Boogie Boards. 
The tablets are similar to a 
modern day etch-a-sketch 
or white board with less 
mess and more maneuver-
ability.

Mathew Borski will 
be “Taking Math on the 
Road” with his $1,754.45 
by allowing students to 
use a USB drive that will 
have the video of the les-
son saved on it. The stu-
dents will be able to use it 
at home if they do not have 
home internet. 

In addition, they will 
have the opportunity to 
check out calculators to 
use at home during the 
STARR review, as well as 
during the school year for 
homework purpose. Final-
ly, headphones will be pro-
vided for students to work 
on the videos during class 
and during study period 
without disturbing one an-
other.

Shannon Greco and 
Nancy Kindle will “Light 
the Stage” with their 
$3,000 when they pur-
chase lighting trees that 
will allow students to work 
with in Theatre class.

Rebecca Wisnoski be-
lieve in “The Brain Pow-
er of Standing” and will 
be using her $1,557.34 to 
provided standing desks 
that will allow students to 
stand and move their body 
so that their brain allows 
then to listen, pay atten-
tion, stay on task and criti-
cally think.

In addition, Wisnoski  
was provided with $256.75 
for “Show Me the Mon-
ey!” which is a book study 
in the Money Matters class 
to prepare them with fi nan-
cial tools for their future. 
The book is titled “Why 
Didn’t They Teach Me 
This in School?  Personal 
Money Management Prin-
ciples to Live By.”

Brenda McDonald will 
be “Filling the Gap: Pro-
viding Internet Access 
for Anywhere, Anytime 
Learning” with her $1,743 
provided by the founda-
tion. The program will 
provide Kajeet hot spots  
for students who do not 
have Internet at home.

The fi nal grant of $570 
was provided to Beth 
Whittle, Rachel Anderson 
and Stacey Byars-Cosby 
for their submission of 
“Portable Dry Erase Ea-
sels for Interactive Appli-
cation.” This program will 
purchase six portable dry 
erase easels to use in the 
career and technical class-
rooms. 

The Anderson-Shiro 
Education Foundation pro-
vided the largest number 
of grants and the highest 
total dollar amount for this 
year’s submissions total-
ing $17,026.75.

Grants,
continued from 1A

Leos,
continued from 1A



COLLEGE STATION 
— If your well has been 
fl ooded, you should as-
sume that the water in it is 
contaminated. Do not use 
the well water for drink-
ing, cooking, making ice, 
brushing your teeth or 
even bathing until you are 
satisfi ed that it is not con-
taminated.

Floodwater can be con-
taminated by substanc-
es from upstream, such 
as manure, sewage from 
fl ooded septic systems 

or wastewater treatment 
plants, and pesticides or 
fertilizer applied to crop-
land that was fl ooded. A 
septic system near a well 
also can cause contamina-
tion when the soil is fl ood-
ed. 

The Texas A&M 
AgriLife Extension Ser-
vice offi ces in Austin and 
Waller Counties and the 
Brazos County Health De-
partment are partnering to 
provide testing services to 
local residents with private 

water wells.
“Flooded private wa-

ter wells should be test-
ed prior to water being 
consumed,” said John W. 
Smith, AgriLife Extension 
program specialist, Col-
lege Station.  

He said those submit-
ting samples should use 
only sampling bottles 
from their AgriLife Ex-
tension offi ce or directly 
from the Brazos County 
Health Department. Water 
samples for E. coli testing 
should be collected less 
than 24-30 hours before 
the sample is submitted. 
The bottle must contain 
exactly 100 ml water as 
indicated on the bottle or 
the lab will reject the sam-
ple. The sample must be 
delivered to the lab on ice 
or ice packs. Included in-
structions should be care-
fully followed to ensure 
accurate results. For addi-
tional information, call the 
Brazos County Health De-
partment at 979-361-5738.

A $20 per sample fee 
will be collected when 
bottles are delivered to the 
Brazos County Health De-
partment at 241 N. Texas 
Ave., Bryan, Texas by par-
ticipants. Samples are ac-
cepted only on Monday - 
Thursday before 3:00 pm.

Samples will be ana-
lyzed for total coliform 

bacteria and Escherichia 
coli.

Required sample bot-
tles and instructions may 
be picked up at the AgriL-
ife Extension offi ce for 
Waller County, 846 6th 
St., Hempstead, 979-826-
7651, or the Extension 
offi ce for Austin County, 
1 E. Main, Bellville, 979-
865-2072.

Smith said the presence 
of E. coli bacteria in water 
indicates that waste from 
humans or warm-blooded 
animals may have con-
taminated the water. Water 
contaminated with E. coli 
bacteria is more likely to 
also have pathogens pres-
ent that can cause diarrhea, 
cramps, nausea or other 
symptoms.

For those with positive 
results for E. coli, instruc-
tions for decontaminating 
the well will be available 
from the Brazos County 
Health Department and 
through the following pub-
lications free for download 
at http://twon.tamu.edu/
fact-sheets/:  Decontam-
inating Flooded Water 
Wells and Shock Chlorina-
tion of Wells.

If you have any ques-
tions, please contact the 
AgriLife Extension Agent 
Stacie Villarreal at 979-
826-7651.
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NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

The Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) will conduct a public hearing on Thursday, June 
30, 2016, at the Navasota Junior High School, located at 9038 State Highway 90 South in Navasota, 
Texas.  The purpose of the hearing is to present the proposed preliminary design for the construction 
of SH 249 from FM 1774 to SH 105 in Grimes County and to receive public comment.  Displays 
of the design will be available for viewing at 5:30 p.m. in the cafeteria with the formal hearing 
commencing at 6:30 p.m. in the gym located across the hall within the same building.  Parking is 
available at both the junior high school and adjacent high school campuses.  

The proposed project would construct a two-lane roadway with shoulders and a passing lane in 
alternating directions within right-of-way that would accommodate future widening to a four-lane 
divided roadway.  The typical right-of-way width would be 400-450 feet. The proposed two-lane 
roadway would be tolled.  In addition, two-lane, one-way, non-tolled frontage roads would be 
constructed along approximately � ve miles of the proposed project (from Urbanosky Lane to west of 
CR 304). Approximately 623-658 acres of new right-of-way would be required.   No displacements 
would be required.  

Information about TxDOT’s right-of-way acquisition procedures, the TxDOT Relocation 
Assistance Program, as well as information about the tentative schedule for right-of-way acquisition 
and  construction may be obtained at the hearing, from the TxDOT Bryan District Of� ce and at                                  
http://www.txdot.gov/inside-txdot/forms-publications/consultants-contractors/publications/row.html. 
The project would cross the 100-year � oodplains associated with Mill Creek and a tributary of 
Beason Creek.  The project would also cross numerous creeks and streams; however, no wetlands 
have been identi� ed within the new right-of-way. 

Exhibits showing the proposed project’s location and design will be displayed at the hearing.  
The Environmental Assessment for the project will also be available for review.  These and other 
information about the proposed project are on � le and available for inspection Monday through 
Friday between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. at the TxDOT Bryan District Of� ce located 
at 2591 N. Earl Rudder Freeway in Bryan, Texas. Project information is also available at                            
www.txdot.gov/inside-txdot/projects/studies/bryan/sh249.html. 

All interested persons are invited to attend this public hearing.  Verbal and written comments relative 
to the proposed project may be presented at the hearing.  Written comments may also be submitted by 
mail to TxDOT Bryan District Of� ce, Attn: SH 249 – Grimes, 2591 N. Earl Rudder Freeway, Bryan, 
Texas 77803, or by e-mail to BRY-SH249-GrimesCo@txdot.gov.  Comments must be received or 
postmarked o n or before Thursday, July 14, 2016, to be included in the of� cial hearing record. 

The public hearing will be conducted in English. Spanish interpretation will be provided.  Persons 
interested in attending the public hearing who have other special communication or accommodation 
needs are encouraged to contact TxDOT’s Bryan District Of� ce at (979) 778-2165 at least � ve 
working days prior to the hearing.  TxDOT will make every reasonable effort to accommodate these 
needs.
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Rattlers announce summer workout program
BY BRENT 

ADDLEMAN
Examiner publisher

\The Navasota High 
School football team 

has announced its 2016 
Strength and Condition 
Camp summer program.

The camp will be held 
Monday through Thurs-
day from June 6-30, July 

11-14 and July 25-28 
from 8:30 to 10:30 a.m. 
under the direction of 
Patrick Goodman and 
Chad Bruggman in the 
Navasota High School 

Weight Room.
The cost of the camp 

is $30, and checks will 
not be accepted. Pay-
ment can be brought to 
Coach Goodman at the 

high school’s Field House 
so they can offi cially be 
signed-up.

Athletes need to be 
signed-up for the pro-
gram. Through six weeks 

of supervised weight 
training and conditioning, 
the Rattlers will work to 
remain as one of the su-
perior teams in the district 
and state. 

The Beef and Forage 
committee will be host-
ing a workshop to help 
new landowners and cur-
rent ones with cattle han-
dling. 

Speakers will talk 
about leasing your prop-
erty for hay or cattle, 
fencing guidelines, how 
to handle cattle and what 
type of pens might work 
better for you. Talk will 
also focus on what you 
should be based on a cal-
endar year with your cat-
tle.

The event will be 
on Saturday, June 25 at 
the Waller County Fair-
grounds from 9 a.m. to 1 

p.m. The cost of the event 
will be $20 a person be-
fore June 20. After June 
20, the cost will increase 
to $25 a person. Lunch 
will be provided.

Please RSVP to the 
Extension office by call-
ing 979-826-7651. Please 
make checks payable to 
Beef & Forage Commit-
tee. If you mail in your 
money please call or 
email us so we can be 
looking for it. CEU’s will 
be provided.

If you have any ques-
tions, please contact 
the AgriLife Extension 
Agent Stacie Villarreal at 
979-826-7651.

Workshop for cattle 
handling this month

Testing, decontaminating water wells after flood
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become internationally
accredited, wrote College
Station firefighter Stuart
Marrs in a city blog post.
In order to gain this kind
of elite recognition, the
department had to under-
go an evaluation involv-
ing a review of 254 differ-
ent performance areas, as
well as an 18-month inter-
nal self-assessment.
“In March, Chief Eric

Hurt led our internal ac-
creditation team to Or-
lando, Florida, to testify
in front of the CFAI Com-
mission,” Marrs wrote.
“The 11-member panel
asked questions regard-
ing our emergency re-
sponses, time analysis,
risk assessments and
plans for future growth
before voting unanimous-
ly to grant accredited sta-
tus to the CSFD.”

College Station Profes-
sional Fire Fighters As-
sociation President Mike
Clements also gave credit
to Hurt.

“The College Station
Professional Fire Fighters
Association would like to
thank Chief Hurt for 35
years of public service,”
said Clements. “The Col-
lege Station Fire Depart-
ment is one of only seven
accredited fire depart-
ments in the state and
among 164 in the [world]
thanks to his work.”
In CSFD’s statement,

City Manager Kelly Tem-
plin said Hurt’s influence
has had positive results

for the city and fire de-
partment.
“Eric has served in

every position within the
fire department during
his career, and he’s been
invaluable to me as chief,”
Templin said in the state-
ment. “He leaves the de-
partment in great shape
and we will immediately
begin the search for his
successor.”
Battalion Chief Robert

Mumford, spokesman
for the fire department,
echoed the city manager’s
remarks in his apprecia-
tion of Hurt’s leadership.

“Over the last three
years, Chief Hurt was
instrumental in reclas-
sifying and creating
several positions in fire
administration in order
to support front line op-
erations,” Mumford said.
“A battalion chief over

the training division was
restructured to help man-
age training activities and
state requirements. Also,
our EMS operations and
safety officers were cre-
ated during his tenure as
chief, which has expanded
our EMS care to our cus-
tomers and provided addi-
tional scene safety for our
firefighters on emergency
operations.”
Hurt earned an associ-

ate’s degree in fire science
from Blinn and has a
bachelor’s degree with an
emphasis in fire adminis-
tration from the Univer-
sity of Western Illinois.
He has been recognized
for various achievements,
including certification
through the National Fire
Academy’s Executive Fire
Officer Program.

Hurt’s official last day
will be onMemorial Day.

done in three years.
In the update, Region

Six ESC told the board the
team successfully recon-
ciled monthly statements
beginning in September
2015 through March of
this year.
“I would say that [Re-

gion Six ESC is] making
great progress at getting
the financial shape of the
district into the shape it
needs to be for the future,”
Michael Holland, execu-
tive director of the firm,
said.
Other services stated in

the contract include pro-
cessing monthly payrolls,
maintaining budget data
and providing financial
and accounting services
in compliance with the
Texas Education Agency
Financial Accountability
System Resource Guide
until the end of August.

Region Six ESC is in
the process of preparing
the budget for the 2016-17
school year and will pres-
ent its preliminary out-

line at the board’s budget
workshop Thursday. Hol-
land said the institution
is essentially assisting the
trustees through the pro-
cess during the workshop
rather than making the
decisions for them.
Throughout the conten-

tious meeting — which
lasted six hours — nearly
50 Hearne school admin-
istrators, teachers and
residents voiced their
concerns about the con-
dition of the district to
each other and to visit-
ing professionals. Many
citizens deemed the audit
as a “witch hunt” against
board members and ad-
ministrators and called it
unnecessary.Dallas-based
forensic accountant Don
Southerland was at Mon-
day’s meeting to present
hisfindingsafter theboard
failed to have a quorum at
theMay 6 specialmeeting.
Among the findings of

the audit, the auditing
team found the business
of f ice produced many
manually prepared checks
that were not correctly re-

corded. The inaccuracies
found on statements com-
pared to the actual checks
varied from “a few cents
to thousands of dollars,”
Southerland said at the
recent community forum.
After personnel inter-

views, the auditing team
found that business em-
ployees fell behind on
standard financial prac-
tices each month, causing
them to turn to manual
production in order to pay
vendors, he said.

At the beginning of the
meeting, Nelda Calhoun
was sworn into the Place
2 seat, replacing former
Board President Sylvia
Montelongo, who was vot-
ed out of office. Calhoun,
who was appointed to the
vice president position,
joined returningmembers
Tina Rocha, Quila Robin-
son, James Taylor and Sa-
mantha Salazar to begin
addressing the district’s
financial woes brought to
light by the audit.
Taylorwas chosenas the

board president in a three-
two vote.

HEARNE:Citizensdeemedaudit a
‘witchhunt’ againstboardmembers
Continued from A9

CHIEF:Hurtpraised forhelping
firedepartmentget accreditation
Continued from A9

not always so appealing.
“This was a very unus-

able space, a very ugly
space,” Cope said. “There
were several attempts to
do something with this
space, but we could never
really follow throughwith
it. I appreciate Tristan’s

commitment to this proj-
ect and seeing it through
and handing it over to us
in a state that we can con-
tinue to work on it.”
Now a freshman at A&M

ConsolidatedHigh School,
Ament said he is glad he
could provide a space
where students at his for-
mer school can perform

science experiments and
“do lessons theywouldn’t
be able to do inside.”
“There’s nothing better

than giving back to your
community,” he said.
“Just the opportunity
that I have to do this made
me feel great, and I hope
everybody gets to benefit
from it.”

SCOUT:Lauded for commitment
Continued from A9

University spokesman
Shane Hinckley declined
to discuss the internal pro-
ceedings, citing university
policy, butdidconfirmthat
Chen would be returning
to teach.
“Yong Chen is very

grateful to the employ-
ment review committee
and is delighted that he
has been given another
chance by Texas A&M,”
said Chen’s lawyer, Rick
Davis. “He will strive to
prove to his wife ... to Tex-
as A&M, to his students
and to the community that

he is a changed man.”
Chen is not teaching

classes this summer and
checked into the Brazos
County Detention Cen-
ter earlier this month to
begin serving his 30-day
sentence.
Chen will also spend 20

months on probation, and
will have to complete an
18-week program to learn
about domestic violence
and how to prevent it.

Prosecutors with the
BrazosCountyDistrictAt-
torney’s office declined to
commentabout thereview.

Chen was the holder
of the Gina and William

H. Flores ’76 Professor-
ship in Finance. The uni-
versity took the professor-
ship away from him after
U.S. Rep. Flores released
a statement condemning
Chen’s actions.
Chen was initially ac-

cused of assaulting his
wife by strangulation, a
third-degree felony, but
Brazos County jurors
didn’t find sufficient evi-
dence that a strangulation
occurred. They did, how-
ever, agree that violence
happened and found him
guilty of the lesser charge
of assault, a Class A mis-
demeanor.

CHEN: ‘Delightedthathehasbeen
givenanotherchancebyTexasA&M’
Continued from A9

Baylorofficial: Starr still
presidentofuniversity
ByPHILLIP ERICKSEN

TheWacoTribune

Ken Starr remained as
Baylor Uni-
v e r s i t y ’ s
p r e s i d e n t
Tuesday, de-
spite media
reports that
he had been
firedfromthe
job earlier in
the day, out-
goingboardof regentsChair-
manRichardWillis said.

Willis declined to elabo-

rate on Starr’s future Tues-
dayafternoonbutconfirmed
Starrwas still the president
Tuesday and told the Tri-
bune-Herald by phone that
the boardwill providemore
information soon. Baylor
has come under fire in re-
centmonths for itshandling
of reported sexual assaults,
including several against
football players.
An Austin blogger pub-

lishedareportearlyTuesday
citinganonymoussourcesin
stating that Starr, Baylor’s
president for six years, was

removed from the presiden-
cy. Multiple media outlets,
including the Washington
Post and Dallas Morning
News, subsequently pub-
lished the story, citing the
blog.
Amid the reports, Starr

remained at work Tues-
day, said RebeccaMalzahn,
deputy chief of staff in the
president’s office.
“We’ve beenhard atwork

with the president all day,”
Malzahn said Tuesday eve-
ning. “He’s still president
today.”

Starr
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Don’t get sidelined by injuries
Walking, running, jumping, stretching, leaning, bending, pulling,

pushing… any repetitive motion can cause wear and damage to your
musculoskeletal system. The sport you love could be taking its toll

on your body.
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SH 249
GRIMES COUNTY

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

The Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) will conduct a public hearing on Thursday, June 30,
2016, at the Navasota Junior High School, located at 9038 State Highway 90 South in Navasota, Texas.
The purpose of the hearing is to present the proposed preliminary design for the construction of SH 249
from FM 1774 to SH 105 in Grimes County and to receive public comment. Displays of the design will be
available for viewing at 5:30 p.m. in the cafeteria with the formal hearing commencing at 6:30 p.m. in the
gym located across the hall within the same building. Parking is available at both the junior high school
and adjacent high school campuses.

The proposed project would construct a two-lane roadway with shoulders and a passing lane in alternating
directions within right-of-way that would accommodate future widening to a four-lane divided roadway.
The typical right-of-way width would be 400-450 feet. The proposed two-lane roadway would be tolled.
In addition, two-lane, one-way, non-tolled frontage roads would be constructed along approximately five
miles of the proposed project (from Urbanosky Lane to west of CR 304). Approximately 623-658 acres of
new right-of-way would be required. No displacements would be required.

Information about TxDOT’s right-of-way acquisition procedures, the TxDOT Relocation Assistance
Program, as well as information about the tentative schedule for right-of-way acquisition and construction
may be obtained at the hearing, from the TxDOTBryan District Office and at http://www.txdot.gov/inside-
txdot/forms-publications/consultants-contractors/publications/row.html. The project would cross the 100-
year floodplains associated with Mill Creek and a tributary of Beason Creek. The project would also cross
numerous creeks and streams; however, no wetlands have been identified within the new right-of-way.

Exhibits showing the proposed project’s location and design will be displayed at the hearing. The
Environmental Assessment for the project will also be available for review. These and other information
about the proposed project are on file and available for inspection Monday through Friday between the
hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. at the TxDOT Bryan District Office located at 2591 N. Earl Rudder
Freeway in Bryan, Texas. Project information is also available at www.txdot.gov/inside-txdot/projects/
studies/bryan/sh249.html.

All interested persons are invited to attend this public hearing. Verbal and written comments relative to
the proposed project may be presented at the hearing. Written comments may also be submitted by mail
to TxDOT Bryan District Office, Attn: SH 249 – Grimes, 2591 N. Earl Rudder Freeway, Bryan, Texas
77803, or by e-mail to BRY-SH249-GrimesCo@txdot.gov. Comments must be received or postmarked on
or before Thursday, July 14, 2016, to be included in the official hearing record.

The public hearing will be conducted in English. Spanish interpretation will be provided. Persons
interested in attending the public hearing who have other special communication or accommodation needs
are encouraged to contact TxDOT’s Bryan District Office at (979) 778-2165 at least five working days
prior to the hearing. TxDOT will make every reasonable effort to accommodate these needs.
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Edward J. Rhomberg
peacefully went to be with
the Lord on June 11, 2016 at
the age of 83 as the result of
an aggressive malignant
brain tumor. He is survived
by his beloved wife of 55
years, Suzanne; his brother,
Thomas J. Rhomberg; his
children, Edward W.
Rhomberg, M.D. and wife

Dana, Elizabeth Ledig and husband Peter, and
Sarah Van Eman and husband Mark; his
grandchildren, Andrew, Mary Elizabeth, Kathryn,
Abby,Caroline,William,BenjaminandChristopher.
He was predeceased in death by his father and
mother, Edward B. Rhomberg, M.D. and Mary
Monroe Rhomberg, and his sister, Mary E. Gasell.

He was born in Williams, Iowa, on April 1, 1933,
butmoved to Guttenberg, Iowa, soon after birth. He
attended grade and high school in Guttenberg and
received Bachelor and Master of Science degrees
in Civil Engineering from the University of Notre
Dame in 1955 and 1956. He later worked in the
field of consulting engineering in Chicago, Illinois,
before leaving to attend IowaStateUniversitywhere
he received a Ph.D. degree in Civil Engineering in
1963.

With the exception of one year in an honorary
American Society of Engineering Education
Residency Program in Engineering Practice in
Chicago, he spent the rest of his 35 year career as a
professor of Civil Engineering, first at theUniversity
of NewMexico for 5 years, then a 9 year stint at the
University of Detroit and lastly, for 21 years at Texas
A&M University, where he served as Associate
Head of the Department, Graduate Advisor and
Assistant Department Head. In September 2000
he was named Professor Emeritus. After retiring in
1999, he volunteered for Habitat for Humanity and
Hospice Brazos Valley. He is well-known for his
sense of humor, generosity and bar-tending skills.

A man of tremendous faith, Ed was an active
member at St. Joseph Catholic Church where he
and Suzanne attended for over 38 years. He taught
C.C.E. and he and Suzanne counseled engaged
couples and served as Eucharistic ministers.

The familywould like to thankVickieDeSantiago,
Rita Rodriguez, and the staff of Hospice Brazos
Valley and Generations Center for Senior Living for
all of their compassionate care and concern, both
for Ed and his family.

Visitation will begin at 5:00 PM followed by a
Rosary at 6:00PMonThursday, June 16th atHillier
Funeral Home, Bryan, TX. The Mass of Celebration
of Life will be held at St. Joseph Catholic Church
in Bryan at 11:00 AM on Friday, June 17th, with
the Reverands Monsignor John McCaffery and
Monsignor John Malinowski co-officiating. A
reception will follow. A private internment will
take place at the mausoleum crypt in Mt. Calvary
Catholic Cemetery in Bryan.

In lieu of flowers, the family requests that
memorial contributions be made to Hospice Brazos
Valley or to the University of Notre Dame, Attn:
Jamery S. Barry, 1100 Grace Hall, Notre Dame, IN
46556

Please share
memories on Edward’s
tribute page at www.
hillierfuneralhome.com

Edward J. Rhomberg
April 1, 1933 - June 11, 2016

If the public doesn’t know
what government is doing,
how can they consent” to
actionstakenbythegovern-
ment on their behalf?
Members of Congress

have long complained that
the White House and exec-
utive-branch agencies have
not been fully transparent
in sharing records with
lawmakers and the public,
while Obama and previous
presidents have criticized
Congress for exempting it-
self from the requirements.
FOIAdoesnotapply toCon-
gress.
“Problems with FOIA

have persisted under both
Republican and Democrat
administrations, but under
President Obama, things
have onlyworsened andhis
commitmenttoa‘neweraof
openness’hasprovenilluso-
ryatbest,”saidSen.Charles
Grassley,R-Iowa,afrequent
Obama critic.
Besides the presumption

of openness, the bill also
wouldplacea25-yearsunset
on the government’s ability
to withhold certain docu-
mentsthatdemonstratehow
the government reaches de-
cisions. Under current law,
many documents related
to decision-making can be
withheld from the public
forever.
Rep. Darrell Issa, R-Cali-

fornia, said the House vote
capsmore than three years’
of effort to reform freedom-
of-information laws.

“The Freedom of Infor-
mation Act was supposed
to make government more
open, but in recent years, it
has become rife with abuse
as administrators have
made a habit of slow-walk-
ing, delaying or outright de-
nying requests for informa-
tion that should have been
made public to beginwith,”
Issa said.
The newly approved bill

should make it harder for
“power-hungrygovernment
officialstokeepinformation
fromtheAmericanpeople,”
he added.
White House spokes-

womanBrandi Hoffine said
Obama looks forward to
signing the bill, which she
said makes important up-
grades to the FOIA system
established nearly 50 years
ago.
The legislation helps to

ensure that the presump-
tion of openness will apply
infutureadministrationsby
requiring agencies to with-
holdinformationonlywhere
a ‘foreseeable harm’ exists,
“codifying the standard es-
tablishedbythisadministra-
tion,”Hoffine said.

The Sunshine in Govern-
ment Initiative, a coalition
of nine media groups that
includes The Associated
Press, applauded the bill’s
passage. The group has
worked to strengthen open-

government policies and
practices.Members include
the American Society of
News Editors, Association
of Alternative Newsmedia,
National Newspaper Asso-
ciation, Newspaper Asso-

ciation of America, Online
News Association, Radio
TelevisionDigital NewsAs-
sociation, Reporters Com-
mittee for Freedom of the
Press andSociety of Profes-
sional Journalists.

ACCESS:ProblemswithFOIAhave
persistedunderbothadministrations
Continued from A7

11 a.m., amid reports that
an armed person was in-
side and may have had
hostages.
According to investiga-

tors, Moghaddam entered
the store and fired at least
one shot toward the ceil-
ing. Police don’t believe
the suspect, who was
armed with a handgun,
fired any other shots.
Authorities initially be-

lieved he took a hostage
and went into an office in
the back of the store, ac-
cording to a police state-
ment.
“We knew there were

hostages inside the busi-
ness, so [SWAT] went in

with the intent to free the
hostages,” Barbee said.
Around 12 :20 p.m. ,

SWAT officers watched
what they had believed
was the only hostage come
out of the office. The offi-
cers entered the roomand
discovered the secondhos-
tage.

“The suspect was still
armed with a handgun
and was a threat to the
hostage and the officers.
Two SWAT officers fired
shots which hit the sus-
pect. Initial information
is that the suspect died
immediately,” police said
in a statement.
It was not immediately

known if theotherhostage
was a store employee or

how that person became
a hostage, Barbee said.
No other injuries were

reported.
Wal-Mart spokesman

Brian Nick released a
statement earlier Tuesday
saying all store associates
and customers were safe.
Nick thanked officers, say-
ing, “This was a very dif-
ficult situation andwe are
thankful for the quick re-
sponse from law enforce-
ment.”
Authorities said the in-

vestigation was ongoing
in Amarillo, in the Texas
Panhandle. Some nearby
streets were closed as a
precaution during the
incident, including an off
ramp to Interstate 27.

STANDOFF:SWATsurprised to
find suspect had additional hostage
Continued from A7

By JUANA. LOZANO
AssociatedPress

HOUSTON — A misde-
meanor charge accusing
an anti-abortion activist of
tryingtobuyhumanorgans
whilemakinganundercover
video looking into Planned
Parenthood practices has
been dismissed, and his at-
torneys said Tuesday they
are working to have a felo-
ny count the activist faces
thrownout aswell.

David Daleiden, 27, and
fellow activist SandraMer-
ritt,63,wereeachindictedin
January on a felony charge
of tamperingwithagovern-
mental record for allegedly
using fake driver’s licenses
to conceal their identities
while dealing with Planned
Parenthood at a Houston
clinic.
Daleiden was also in-

dicted on themisdemeanor
count related to purchasing
human organs. Video foot-
age from the two activists
showed themposing as rep-
resentatives of a company
called BioMax, which pur-
portedly procured fetal tis-

sue for research. Planned
Parenthoodhassaidthefake
company offered to pay the
“astronomical amount” of
$1,600 for organs from a fe-
tus. The clinic said it never
agreed to the offer.
But Harris County Crim-

inal Court at Law Judge
Diane Bull on Monday dis-
missed the misdemeanor
count Daleiden faced, rul-

ing the indictment was
flawed because prosecutors
had failed to make refer-
ence within the indictment
to any exceptions to the law
prohibiting the purchase or
sale of human organs. Un-
derthelaw,thereareseveral
exceptions including if fees
were being paid to a doctor
orhospitalfortheirservices.

Daleiden’s attorneys
called the dismissal a vic-
tory for the anti-abortion
movement.
“This is one of two

[charges]. One down, one to
go. Both of these cases are
flawed. They’ve got more
holes than two pieces of
Swiss cheese,” Terry Yates,
oneof Daleiden’sattorneys,
said at a news conference.
Daleiden, who is the

founder of a group called
the Center for Medical
Progress, was not at Tues-
day’s news conference. But
in a statement, the center
said the dismissal “is the
latest confirmation that the
indictmentsfromarunaway
grand jury inHoustonwere
apoliticallymotivatedsham
all along.”

Activist’s humanorgan
purchase chargedropped

AP file photo
David Daleiden, one of the two
indicted anti-abortion activists,
speakswith supporters outside the
Harris County Criminal Courthouse
after turning himself in to authori-
ties in Houston in February.
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Drop your entries at: Catalena Hatters - 203 Main in Bryan
Cavender’s - 2300 Earl Rudder Fwy S, College Station

The Eagle - 1729 Briarcrest, Bryan
ATTN: ULTIMATE RODEO FAN CONTEST

Ultimate Rodeo
Fan Contest

Only original ballots published in The Eagle will be accepted. No Photocopies accepted. Be sure to include
your name, address and telephone number on your ballot. Eagle employees, sponsors and their employees and
families are not eligible for prizes. Must be 18 years or older to enter.Visit bryanrodeo.com for more information.

CONTEST DEADLINE 2 P.M JUNE 21, 2016
Winners Announced in The Eagle on June 22, 2016

WINNERSWILL RECEIVE:
First Prize: Cavender’s Square Toe Boots, 6 Rodeo Tickets – Cavender’s Boot City

Second Prize: Western Wear, 4 Rodeo Tickets - The Eagle
Third Prize: Straw Hat, 4 Rodeo Tickets – Catalena Hatters

Fourth Prize: 6 VIP Rodeo Tickets – Sammy Catalena Rodeo Company

SH 249
GRIMES COUNTY

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

The Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) will conduct a public hearing on Thursday, June 30,
2016, at the Navasota Junior High School, located at 9038 State Highway 90 South in Navasota, Texas.
The purpose of the hearing is to present the proposed preliminary design for the construction of SH 249
from FM 1774 to SH 105 in Grimes County and to receive public comment. Displays of the design will be
available for viewing at 5:30 p.m. in the cafeteria with the formal hearing commencing at 6:30 p.m. in the
gym located across the hall within the same building. Parking is available at both the junior high school
and adjacent high school campuses.

The proposed project would construct a two-lane roadway with shoulders and a passing lane in alternating
directions within right-of-way that would accommodate future widening to a four-lane divided roadway.
The typical right-of-way width would be 400-450 feet. The proposed two-lane roadway would be tolled.
In addition, two-lane, one-way, non-tolled frontage roads would be constructed along approximately five
miles of the proposed project (from Urbanosky Lane to west of CR 304). Approximately 623-658 acres of
new right-of-way would be required. No displacements would be required.

Information about TxDOT’s right-of-way acquisition procedures, the TxDOT Relocation Assistance
Program, as well as information about the tentative schedule for right-of-way acquisition and construction
may be obtained at the hearing, from the TxDOTBryan District Office and at http://www.txdot.gov/inside-
txdot/forms-publications/consultants-contractors/publications/row.html. The project would cross the 100-
year floodplains associated with Mill Creek and a tributary of Beason Creek. The project would also cross
numerous creeks and streams; however, no wetlands have been identified within the new right-of-way.

Exhibits showing the proposed project’s location and design will be displayed at the hearing. The
Environmental Assessment for the project will also be available for review. These and other information
about the proposed project are on file and available for inspection Monday through Friday between the
hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. at the TxDOT Bryan District Office located at 2591 N. Earl Rudder
Freeway in Bryan, Texas. Project information is also available at www.txdot.gov/inside-txdot/projects/
studies/bryan/sh249.html.

All interested persons are invited to attend this public hearing. Verbal and written comments relative to
the proposed project may be presented at the hearing. Written comments may also be submitted by mail
to TxDOT Bryan District Office, Attn: SH 249 – Grimes, 2591 N. Earl Rudder Freeway, Bryan, Texas
77803, or by e-mail to BRY-SH249-GrimesCo@txdot.gov. Comments must be received or postmarked on
or before Thursday, July 14, 2016, to be included in the official hearing record.

The public hearing will be conducted in English. Spanish interpretation will be provided. Persons
interested in attending the public hearing who have other special communication or accommodation needs
are encouraged to contact TxDOT’s Bryan District Office at (979) 778-2165 at least five working days
prior to the hearing. TxDOT will make every reasonable effort to accommodate these needs.

501 South Austin • Brenham, Texas
979-836-3332

www.bankofbrenham.com

Bank of Brenham

New Opportunity
at the

12 Month CD
1.16% Interest Rate

1.17% APY

12 Month Jumbo CD
1.26% Interest Rate

1.27% APY
The annual percentage yield (APY) shown is for a minimum opening balance of $500 on non-Jumbo classified Certificates of
Deposits (CDs). A minimum opening balance of $100,000 applies to Jumbo classified CDs. The CD term and balance must be
maintained for the term of the CD to obtain the APY. Interest is compounded daily. Penalties for early withdrawal may apply.
Interest rate and APY are accurate as of June 1, 2016 but are subject to change at any time. Fees may reduce earnings.
Accounts are subject to approval.
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                   TRANSCRIPT FOR THE

           TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

                 BRYAN DISTRICT OFFICE

     OPEN HOUSE / PUBLIC HEARING / PUBLIC COMMENTS

    SH 249 GRIMES COUNTY - TODD MISSION TO NAVASOTA

                THURSDAY, JUNE 30, 2016

              BE IT REMEMBERED, that the above-entitled

Open House/Public Hearing/Public Comments was held at

Navasota Junior High School, 9038 State Highway 90

South, Navasota, Texas, between the hours of 5:30 p.m.

to 7:36 p.m., on Thursday, the 30th day of June 2016;

and the following proceedings and comments were reported

by Kim Pence, a Certified Shorthand Reporter.
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1                  P R O C E E D I N G S

2                 THURSDAY, JUNE 30, 2016

3                       (6:30 p.m.)

4               MR. BOHNE:  Good evening.  My name is

5 Chad Bohne, and I'm Director of Transportation Planning

6 and Development for the Bryan District of TxDOT.  I will

7 be serving as the public hearing officer for the State

8 Highway 249 Grimes County Toll Project Public Hearing.

9 This hearing is convened by the Texas Department of

10 Transportation and is being held to receive comments

11 from the public regarding this project.  Welcome to each

12 of you and thank you for joining us.

13               This presentation is being translated

14 simultaneously in -- in Spanish.  Those in attendance

15 needing this service should visit our staff at the

16 sign-in table in the back.  I believe she made the

17 announcement earlier.

18               Notices of this hearing were published on

19 the TxDOT website in the Navasota Examiner, in the

20 Bryan/College Station Eagle.  The environmental

21 assessment and schematic layouts were made available for

22 public review beginning May 26, 2016.

23               On a safety note, TxDOT likes to begin a

24 meeting with a note on safety.  There is not any

25 inclement weather forecast for this evening, but the
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1 exits, of course, are fairly well marked.  And there is

2 a fire extinguisher outside the door to your left.  And

3 if necessary, there is an AED available in the hallway

4 if we so would need that.

5               The order of tonight's hearing, we will

6 start by providing a brief overview about the project.

7 There is project information that must be stated for the

8 record.  We will then provide the elected officials in

9 attendance an opportunity to provide their comments.

10 Then we'll hear from those of you who have signed up to

11 speak.  If you would like to speak, please raise your

12 hand if you haven't received a card for speedier

13 registration, and one of our staff members will bring it

14 to you.

15               The procedures to this public hearing are

16 part of a formal environmental process.  We have a court

17 reporter here tonight making a verbatim transcript of

18 the hearing.  All verbal comments received during the

19 hearing will be included in the transcript and included

20 in the final report on this project.

21               You may also provide written comments and

22 leave them in the comment box tonight or mail them back

23 to our office.  You may also send electronic comments

24 via the TxDOT website.  Comments must be received or

25 postmarked on or before Thursday, July 14, 2016 to be
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1 included in the official hearing record.

2               PRESENTATION BY CHAD BOHNE

3               MR. BOHNE:  With that, I will begin the

4 formal presentation.  The proposed 249 project would

5 construct a tolled two-lane roadway from FM 1774 to

6 State Highway 105, including a passing lane in

7 alternating directions.

8               In addition, two-lane one-way frontage

9 roads would be constructed along the approximately five

10 miles of the proposed project from Urbanosky Lane to

11 west of County Road 304.  These frontage roads would not

12 be tolled.  Local access would be provided using ramps

13 at FM 1774, Urbanosky Lane, County Road 304, County

14 Road 306 and State Highway 105.

15               This study also addresses the acquisition

16 of sufficient right-of-way to accommodate the future

17 widening of State Highway 249 to a four-lane divided

18 roadway.  The construction of future widening would

19 require additional environmental investigation when the

20 construction is determined necessary.

21               The planned new right-of-way would

22 accommodate direct connector ramps from State

23 Highway 249 to State Highway 105 for both east and west

24 directions.  However, only the State Highway 105 direct

25 connector to the west would be built in this project.
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1               A typical right-of-way width is 450 feet

2 in areas with frontage roads and 400 feet in areas

3 without frontage roads.  The proposed toll project is

4 anticipated to use state funds only.  No federal funding

5 is expected.  As of February 2016, the estimated cost of

6 the proposed project is approximately 165 to

7 $170 million.

8               The proposed project is needed

9 to facilitate the safe and efficient movement of people

10 and goods between Grimes County/Brazos Valley region and

11 the Houston Metropolitan area.  The proposed project

12 needs to address safety, existing, future and seasonal

13 traffic congestion, transportation system linkage and

14 emergency evacuation routes.

15               The proposed project and environmental

16 study presented at this hearing initiated in 2013 with

17 the formation of a working group made up of local

18 community representatives.  The working group defined a

19 study area for the project and potential corridors.  A

20 public meeting was held in October 2013.

21               The group recommended a new location

22 corridor connecting FM 1774 north of Todd Mission to

23 State Highway 105 west of FM 1748.  Widening the

24 existing route was not recommended.  Preliminary routes

25 were then developed within the recommended corridor and
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1 further evaluated on their ability to meet the project

2 purpose and need as well as their individual impacts on

3 the area's environment.

4               A second public meeting was then held in

5 April 2014.  The resulting route was then further

6 analyzed and utilized a large tract of undeveloped land

7 comprised approximately 20 percent of the length of the

8 overall route.

9               To consider property owner concerns, the

10 study also focused additional review of the alignment

11 within the area between County Road 304 and County

12 Road 306.  Alternatives were developed and input was

13 sought through outreach of potentially affected property

14 owners.  The resulting preferred alignment was

15 determined not feasible after determining the full

16 extent of potential gravesites and stream impacts.

17               Based on this environmental analysis and

18 project administrative record, TxDOT has been moving the

19 alignment seen on the maps this evening, including two

20 alternatives for this section, and soliciting citizen

21 input on environmental factors.  Of these remaining two

22 alternatives, there are differences in construction

23 costs related to the project length, right-of-way

24 acquisition costs, the number of affected parcels,

25 vegetation impact, stream impacts and floodway
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1 crossings.

2               This information and the information

3 gained from this public hearing will be used to select

4 the final alignment for construction.  All projects that

5 are developed must consider both a build and a no-build

6 alternative.  The no-build alternative serves as the

7 baseline to which the build alternatives are compared.

8 For the no-build alternative, the existing

9 transportation network within the project limits is

10 considered, including any improvements that are already

11 reasonably expected to occur, regardless of the outcome

12 of this project.  Through the environmental process,

13 TxDOT determined that the no-build alternative would not

14 meet the purpose and need for this project.

15               Copies of the environmental assessment are

16 available for review at the open house in the room next

17 door.  They can also be reviewed at the TxDOT Bryan

18 District Office and on the project website.

19               The project will require between 623 and

20 658 acres of new right-of-way depending on which

21 alternative is selected.  The project does not cause any

22 business, commercial or residential displacements.

23 TxDOT will follow the Uniform Relocation Assistance and

24 Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970 in

25 acquiring right-of-way.  TxDOT will continue to
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1 coordinate with affected property owners as the project

2 moves forward.  Additional information about the

3 potential right-of-way impacts and TxDOT's relocation

4 program is available at the open house in the room next

5 door and online on the project website.

6               After right-of-way acquisition, on-site

7 investigation will be required to delineate any waters

8 of the U.S.  Once delineated, if required, appropriate

9 Corps of Engineers Section 404 permitting will be

10 obtained to direct construction activities.

11 Construction is estimated to begin in 2017 and be

12 completed in 2020.

13                     PUBLIC COMMENTS

14               MR. BOHNE:  We are now ready to start the

15 formal public comment period.  Before we begin, I want

16 to quickly explain the public hearing format.  In

17 accordance with TxDOT public hearing policy, this

18 portion of the hearing is intended to collect comments.

19 Staff and I will not be responding to comments or

20 answering questions during the comment period.  The

21 question and answer opportunity is with staff at the

22 layouts in the open house area.

23               We have several elected officials in

24 attendance this evening who I will now acknowledge their

25 presence and ask if they are interested in making
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1 comment.

2               We have -- let's see.  Grimes County

3 Commissioners are here.  We have some -- Grimes County

4 Commissioner Barbara Walker is here.  Thank you for

5 coming.  Commissioner Gary Husfeld is here.  We

6 appreciate you coming.  Commissioner David Dobyanski is

7 here.  I appreciate you coming.  Montgomery County Judge

8 Craig Doyal.  Grimes County Judge, Judge Ben Leman, is

9 here.  Bert Miller, Mayor of Navasota, is here.

10               Representative of -- Representative Cecil

11 Bell's aide is here.  We have representation -- I don't

12 have a name -- from Magnolia City Council.  We have a

13 representative -- Congressman Kevin Brady's office is

14 represented by his aide, Michael Etheridge.  And County

15 Attorney, Jon Fultz, is here.

16               We also have a representative of -- a

17 Commissioner from Harris County, Commissioner Jack

18 Cagle's Representative, Pamela Rocchi, is here.  We

19 thank you all for attending and appreciate your service.

20               None of those elected officials chose or

21 noted that they wanted to make a public comment.  So

22 with that, we will move on to our speakers.  Are there

23 any elected officials I have failed to notice that want

24 to be recognized for their attendance this evening?

25               (No response)



June 30, 2016

Associated Court Reporters 979-260-5900

Page 11

1               MR. BOHNE:  All right.  To ensure everyone

2 is given an opportunity, speakers are allowed three

3 minutes to provide their comments.  You will see a timer

4 on the screen to give you an idea of the time you have

5 left.  We appreciate your cooperation in providing an

6 opportunity for everyone that is interested in speaking.

7 When your name is called, please proceed to the

8 microphone, state your name, address and your

9 organization you represent, if any.

10               Remember that we are collecting your

11 comments and not entering into a discussion or answering

12 your questions.  You then have three minutes to provide

13 your comments.  Your comments will be included in the

14 final project report and will be available for public

15 review.  If you would like to speak but haven't filled

16 out a card yet, please raise your hand and someone will

17 bring you a speaker card.

18               With that, we will work through the cards

19 announcing our speakers.

20               MS. BEAUBIAN:  Okay.  Our first speaker is

21 Catherine Walsh, followed by Marcus Johnson and Shelton

22 Perkins.

23               COMMENTS BY CATHERINE WALSH

24               MS. WALSH:  I'm Catherine Walsh.  I live

25 in Plantersville on County Road 201 and the loop.  I'm
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1 representing the group against the 249 toll road.  We

2 want TxDOT to realize that some of this land has washed

3 away.  You do need to take a look at it.

4               My concerns is my property is near the --

5 one of the feeder roads, is the noise, inability to get

6 police and ambulance back there.  We only have one

7 ambulance in our part of the county.  It takes 45

8 minutes to maybe get a sheriff's department out there.

9 It takes two hours -- almost two hours to get a tow

10 truck because it took me -- my neighbor ran into me and

11 it took us two hours to get a tow truck.  You've got to

12 think of the services that are available.

13               And secondly, mainly, I just got back from

14 San Antonio and I took the Grand Parkway this June, and

15 a year ago in June I took the Grand Parkway, and there's

16 been no buildup of anything.  There's been one building

17 going up and it's near I-10.  So anyone who thinks that

18 this is going to be a big progress of development, it's

19 not going to be because if you take a look at the Grand

20 Parkway, it -- it's just all farmland just like our

21 county is also.

22               And when you -- and I don't think this

23 toll road is going to be financially -- what's the

24 word -- I was on the Grand Parkway.  I counted on one

25 hand, there were three cars the whole time and -- and
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1 that's going both ways.

2               So, you know, I'm against it, and I don't

3 think it's going to be profitable.  So -- and I don't

4 want the noise.  I don't want the wild animals coming

5 that -- that kind of go back in there.  I don't want

6 them hurt.  My dogs like to run in my neighborhood's

7 yard sometimes, and I don't want to have to retrieve

8 them and find out they got hit by a car.  So, please, do

9 not build.

10               MS. BEAUBIAN:  Thank you.

11               Marcus Johnson.

12               (Applause)

13                COMMENTS BY MARCUS JOHNSON

14               MR. JOHNSON:  Thank you.  My name is

15 Marcus Johnson and I'm representing me, my family and

16 the Voss family related to the large ranch property

17 located at 12794 County Road 307, a property that will

18 be devastated by the yellow route.

19               This land was purchased a few years ago --

20 a couple years ago, excuse me -- after several meetings

21 with TxDOT employees that gave us the understanding that

22 the route was not going to change.  Our family would

23 never have bought this land if we knew that the current

24 route at that time was going to change.  Therefore --

25 excuse me.  We had plans to build several homes on the
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1 ranch, but now those plans are impossible if the yellow

2 route is chosen.

3               I acknowledge there are at least 12 local

4 families who strongly oppose the yellow route.  There's

5 also a pad site on the property intended for a saltwater

6 disposal facility.  That would be a source of income for

7 our family.  However, that will be impossible as the

8 yellow route goes directly over the well site.

9               Not to mention there are 200 exotic

10 animals on this property.  This is one of two

11 high-fenced properties in the area.  I know firsthand

12 the care that is needed for those animals and the issues

13 surrounding the stress that it would put on them to

14 relocate them.  Those animals include zebra, African

15 eland, axis, fallow, red deer and waterbuck.  And to my

16 knowledge, there has never been an environmental study

17 done on this property.

18               So at the end of this, I urge the panel to

19 not choose the yellow route due to my mentioned

20 considerations.  And I thank you.

21               MS. BEAUBIAN:  Thank you.

22               (Applause)

23               MS. BEAUBIAN:  Shelton Perkins.

24               COMMENTS BY SHELTON PERKINS

25               MR. PERKINS:  Thank you.  My name is
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1 Shelton Perkins.  I -- I represent myself, my family and

2 also the members of the Voss family that have property

3 located on the County Road 307 located -- the number is

4 12794.

5               Our property, family property there, we'd

6 be devastated with the yellow road if it goes through

7 the property.  You just heard a few minutes ago the type

8 of animals that we have there.  It's a -- it's a

9 beautiful piece of property.  And, you know, you heard

10 about the Walsh site that's there that never shows up on

11 any of the maps the road goes through.  So it -- it's

12 going to be tough for us.  We really love the property.

13               A little bit about me.  You know, I've

14 worked all my life and, you know, with dreams of

15 retiring in the country.  I'm a country boy at heart.  I

16 grew up in the country.  I try to get back every time

17 and get pulled away with jobs.  But, you know, I'm

18 reaching retirement and our dream was to retire out on

19 this property, one of the reasons that our family bought

20 this property.  You know, I met with the builders.  We

21 were pretty much ready to go, and then we found out that

22 there's a chance it could go through very near where I

23 was going to put my home.  So it was very disappointing.

24               The second point I'd like to make is

25 there's been several meetings for my family.  I've
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1 attended several of them, couple of them matter of fact,

2 to where one, prior to purchase of the property, when

3 they said it will either go the proposed route or it

4 won't go at all.  Well, that wasn't right.

5               And then we would get ready to pave, do

6 some improvements to the property, we did some

7 improvements like paved a road in.  We, again, talked

8 with TxDOT and they said yeah, go ahead and pave the

9 road.  So it's been pretty much a disappointment for us.

10               You heard about the animals.  We've got

11 over 200 animals or more that's on the property, very

12 different types of species.  They are -- it's going to

13 be very difficult to move those animals because the

14 road -- the yellow route will be going right through

15 their habitat, and we'd just have to move them.  There's

16 not enough habitat for them after that.

17               So what I would like to do, I'd like to

18 urge this panel, TxDOT, whoever has the authority, not

19 to build the toll road.  If you've got to build a toll

20 road, please don't do the yellow route.  Thank you.

21               MS. BEAUBIAN:  Thank you.

22               I'll be calling up David Tullos, then

23 Sandra Nobles and then Mary Ann Klein, please.

24                 COMMENTS BY DAVID TULLOS

25               MR. TULLOS:  Hi.  My name is David Tullos.



June 30, 2016

Associated Court Reporters 979-260-5900

Page 17

1 I'm a fourth generation resident of Grimes County and a

2 coordinator for the Grimes Citizens Advisory Group.

3 They've given me 180 seconds to describe the flaws in

4 this project and the process by which it has been

5 planned, and that's only 180 seconds to point out the

6 plans, hopes and dreams of varying landowners that are

7 being crushed because of this project.  That's not

8 really enough time.

9               This entire process has been stacked

10 against area landowners beginning with the initial 249

11 working group that included no one to represent the

12 landowners whose property would be lost, and ending with

13 tonight's meeting and presentation of an environmental

14 study which contains the same deficiencies that have

15 been present since the very beginning.  Along the way

16 area residences have volunteered thousands of man-hours

17 raising public awareness and communicating to TxDOT

18 their opposition to this project.  At every public

19 meeting the majority of citizens oppose the project, and

20 TxDOT ignored our concerns.  So is tonight going to be

21 any different?

22               By TxDOT's own facts, the traffic flow

23 numbers do not support the road.  Population growth

24 projections do not support the road.  Toll revenue

25 forecasts are inaccurate and will not pay for the road's
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1 cost of construction in the foreseeable future.

2               Stop Grimes 249 and the Grimes Citizens

3 Advisory Group have collectively worked for three years

4 to stop this project.  Almost 2,000 signatures of

5 residents, landowners and concerned citizens have been

6 presented on petitions to TxDOT and the Texas

7 Transportation Commission, and over 500 public

8 information requests seeking project facts and

9 information were filed.  We do not want a toll road in

10 Grimes County.  We ask that you choose the no-build

11 option.

12               If you truly feel that Grimes County needs

13 this road, then build it as a free highway with feeders

14 and access roads that connect to FM 1774 and State

15 Highway 105.  Thank you.

16               (Applause)

17               MS. BEAUBIAN:  Thank you.

18               Sandra Nobles.

19                COMMENTS BY SANDRA NOBLES

20               MS. S. NOBLES:  My name is Sandra Nobles

21 and I'm here representing my family.  We live on County

22 Road 307, and both the yellow and the green routes

23 affect my property.

24               I'm against the State Highway 249 toll

25 road through Grimes County, I have been for years.  I do
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1 not understand how you think your proposed controlled

2 access roadway consisting of two lanes with intermittent

3 passing lanes and only five miles of frontage roads will

4 benefit the flow of traffic between Houston and College

5 Station.  Why will you not use existing money to improve

6 FM 1774 and State Highway 105 rather than build a toll

7 road?  If you add shoulders, turn lanes to 1774 and

8 improve 105 by making it four lanes with a median just

9 like Highway 6, it seems that would be beneficial to

10 move traffic through rather than constructing a toll

11 road.

12               What's the purpose of constructing a toll

13 road that you yourself have told us will never pay for

14 itself in Grimes County.  Not only will this toll road

15 be a form of double taxation, it will be a waste of

16 taxpayers' dollars.  Why would you take over 650 acres

17 from the citizens of Grimes County and allow that to

18 benefit a private organization?

19               The toll road will destroy wooded areas

20 filled with live wildlife, grazing land for cattle,

21 horses, lakes fed by natural springs and the quiet life

22 enjoyed by many Grimes County citizens.  Again, my

23 question, does Grimes County really need this toll road?

24 I say no-build.

25               Why do you still have two routes from
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1 County Road 304 to 407?  Are you just trying to turn

2 neighbor against neighbor?  Is that a ploy of TxDOT?  My

3 family and the Bower (phonetic) family are the only two

4 families affected by these two routes.

5               Are you -- if you must continue with this

6 toll road project, I'm asking you to choose the yellow

7 route because it is the most fitting for the families

8 that are out there.  It covers -- it goes around the

9 backs of the property boundary lines and does not cut

10 across through regular large tracts of land.  Thank you

11 so much.

12               (Applause)

13               MS. BEAUBIAN:  Thank you.

14               Mary Ann Klein, and then I'll be calling

15 up Kathleen Klein LeStrange and also Amy Nobles after

16 that and Ricke Weinkauf.

17               COMMENTS BY MARY ANN KLEIN

18               MARY ANN KLEIN:  Good evening.  I'm

19 Mary Ann Klein and I represent the -- and my sister will

20 be talking in a few minutes.  I represent the Klein

21 family.  It's actually Klein and McMurray (phonetic)

22 families that have been in this county for over a

23 hundred years.  The land that is proposed to be crossed

24 by this toll road, which we oppose, has been in the

25 family for that long.
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1               The problem with this -- with this toll

2 road, it will destroy the rural nature of this

3 community.  It will change the character of Grimes

4 County, which has been a rural, quiet place, someplace

5 that has been near to the hearts of many people who live

6 here and those who are no longer here.

7               The first meeting that I attended, the

8 open house, I heard stories of people who had -- like

9 one of the gentlemen here who had retired here, one man

10 had even built his own home by hand, and the road was

11 now going to destroy the quiet of his area.

12               The human cost of this project, which I

13 think is ill-founded, is very great.  And I -- and I

14 also think that the -- some of the comments that were

15 made at the -- at Austin at the hearing of the Texas

16 Transportation Commission made by Texas A&M

17 representative were absolutely absurd, trying to make

18 the case this was a great thing for medical research

19 between Houston and here.  You don't need a road for

20 medical research.

21               Some of the comments that have been

22 offered in support of this are very self-serving, and I

23 think that the -- the other thing that I think is really

24 troubling to me and people in the community is the

25 three-prong attack on the county by the CenterPoint
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1 Energy project, by this proposed toll road and by the

2 high-speed train; that they are concurrently being

3 generated and planned in the same area is very

4 problematic.  And I would ask the question, how is this

5 in the public's best interest for each to strive to

6 obtain the necessary governmental approval in isolation

7 of each other?  That's a real -- that's a very, very

8 problematic thing.

9               Also -- and this is a personal note on the

10 community impact.  The three-build alternatives that

11 have been designed that's in your report, the

12 three-build alternatives have been designed to minimize

13 changes in access to impacting adjacent properties.  Our

14 property will be divided by both the toll road and the

15 two one-way frontage roads.  Unless there are cross

16 points between County Road 304 and Urbanosky Lane, it

17 will be considerable difficulty going from one parcel to

18 the other.  It's a ten-mile round trip.  What does Texas

19 Department of Transportation intend to do to minimize or

20 mitigate that impact if you go ahead with this project?

21               We are opposed to the toll road.  Thank

22 you.

23               (Applause)

24               MS. BEAUBIAN:  Thank you.

25               Kathleen Klein LeStrange.
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1                COMMENTS BY MS. LeSTRANGE

2               MS. LeSTRANGE:  Good evening.  Kathleen

3 Klein LeStrange.  As my sister just noted, the family

4 has owned this property for over a hundred years.  It

5 has meant the world to us, and in its pristine silken

6 state, it has been a respite for us, something to dream

7 about, something to develop, something which we thought

8 we would have for all of our lives.  Obviously TxDOT has

9 other plans for us.

10               We do oppose the toll road.  We oppose it

11 very strongly.  My sister has made all the cogent

12 points, but I will add one more.  We often harvest

13 timber off of our property, and that would no longer be

14 possible because of the way that the roads will cut

15 through.  That was one of the few things that we could

16 gain from our property, and we were -- we will lose it

17 now.  Thank you very much.

18               (Applause)

19               MS. BEAUBIAN:  Thank you.

20               Amy Nobles and then Ricke Weinkauf.

21                  COMMENTS BY AMY NOBLES

22               MS. A. NOBLES:  My name is Amy Nobles.  I

23 own property on County Road 307, 11865, and I'm here to

24 speak on behalf of my family and myself.

25               I'm going to use my three minutes to talk
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1 to you about my opposition to the 249 toll road through

2 Grimes County.  This community has safe, quality roads

3 that are accessible to all residents.  Per your draft

4 environmental assessment, the average household income

5 in Grimes County is $32,238.  The average income

6 considered in poverty in the U.S. $24,036 based on the

7 U.S. Census Bureau and property threshold in 2015.  Are

8 you suggesting that with the extra $8,000 Grimes County

9 residents make above the poverty limit they will be able

10 to take the toll road?

11               The toll road sets up a transportation

12 system that segregates residents by income.  It provides

13 a new safe road for residents that can afford to pay a

14 toll; separate, but equal, and income segregation.

15               The community also deserves its local

16 government to say no to eminent domain.  You are opposed

17 to forms of eminent domain when it comes to the

18 high-speed rail and the power lines, but not the 249

19 toll road.

20               I'm from Texas A&M, of which I am an

21 alumni, and speak on their desire to see it built and

22 how it benefits A&M.  Our urban and county individuals

23 speak in favor of the connector and how they see the

24 benefits to the residents, but I see no benefit to the

25 citizens of Grimes County.  Eminent domain requires that
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1 the project provide for the public good, not the good of

2 the surrounding counties.  This toll road does nothing

3 for the public good in Grimes County.  Grimes County is

4 not a flyover county where we allow Texas A&M,

5 Montgomery County and TxDOT to decide how people should

6 drive by and through to connect to Houston and College

7 Station.  You have seen this before on Highway 290

8 bypassing Hempstead.  The citizens deserve more than a

9 toll road.

10               (Applause)

11               MS. BEAUBIAN:  Thank you.

12               Then we have Ricke Weinkauf, and then

13 after that Robert Nobles and Don Dixon, please.

14               COMMENTS BY RICKE WEINKAUF

15               MS. WEINKAUF:  My name is Ricke Weinkauf,

16 and I'm here representing myself and my family.  I'm a

17 citizen of Grimes County.  I want to express my

18 objection to the Highway 249 project in Grimes County.

19 My main objection is to the use of toll roads in the

20 state, period.

21               There is conflicting information and

22 evidence that this form of financing roads is the most

23 cost-effective way to address the needs of the state.

24 At this time, there is leadership in Texas that agree

25 that a toll system is not the best way to meet the
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1 state's transportation needs.

2               I personally live off 306 and 1748.  In

3 order to get to work or go to Navasota, I must get

4 on 105.  The portion of 105 I drive is already congested

5 and dangerous.  I have repeatedly asked how can traffic

6 from a 249 extension possibly merge onto 105 at that

7 very point and not cause additional traffic and increase

8 the crash rate.  Building the extension for improving

9 105 to handle the added volume makes no sense at all.

10 Why has an effort not been made to improve our existing

11 roads making them safe for citizens to travel?

12               There's much speculation that 249 will

13 actually circumvent Navasota.  This action would make --

14 make more sense it not being in the best interest of the

15 county.  Again, I am opposed to the 249 extension and

16 support a no-build alternative.

17               But in the event this project moves

18 forward, I'd like to go on record that I support the

19 yellow route because it's the least disruptive to

20 numerous long-time landowners.  Thank you.

21               (Applause)

22               MS. BEAUBIAN:  Thank you.

23               Robert Nobles.

24                COMMENTS BY ROBERT NOBLES

25               MR. R. NOBLES:  My name is Robert Nobles.
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1 I live at 11865 County Road 307 in Navasota.  I am

2 opposed to toll roads.  I want the no-build option.

3               The Grimes County Judge, my Commissioner,

4 the Texas Governor and many other elected officials are

5 all opposed to toll roads.  So why are you still

6 building toll roads?

7               I understand why the elected officials

8 first gave approval for a toll road because you, TxDOT,

9 threatened them with you either build this toll road or

10 we'll take the money elsewhere.  Well, that was wrong,

11 you shouldn't have done that.  We need a road, Grimes

12 County needs a road.  Widen 1774.  You have enough money

13 to do that, we know that.

14               So why are you not going with the original

15 plan?  Why is it not even on the table about widening

16 1774?  You already purchased the corners of 1774 and

17 105.  So why is it not -- why can you not consider that?

18 You said you couldn't even consider that, it was off the

19 table.  I know TxDOT has the money to widen 1774.  We

20 have been at TxDOT meetings for over a year every month,

21 so we know there's money available.

22               Why make another road that destroys almost

23 650 acres of Grimes County rural property?  TxDOT works

24 for the people.  Then listen; we don't want a toll road.

25 Why are you wasting tax dollars to build a toll road?
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1 You said you would not pay -- you've told us that it

2 would not pay for itself through Grimes County.  Why are

3 you even considering it?  It doesn't make sense to me.

4               TxDOT has said this road will go from

5 Houston to Waco, y'all have told us that.  So why are

6 you telling the people you will not bypass Navasota?

7 You did Hempstead.

8               Why are you not building another road when

9 you can't -- why are you trying to build another road

10 when you can't keep the current roads fixed?  1774

11 doesn't even have shoulders on it.  You could easily add

12 shoulders and stuff to it.

13               Toll roads are a form of double taxation.

14 They take away my property rights.  They are not fair to

15 low-income families.  So why are you penalizing the

16 people of Grimes County?

17               And I would like to, at this point, make a

18 quick poll.  Would the people please raise your hand if

19 you are opposed to toll roads?

20               (Audience members raise their hands)

21               MR. R. NOBLES:  Thank you.  We have what,

22 85 percent probably approved of no toll roads.  Listen

23 to the people.

24               A no-build is the best option.  But if you

25 must build, take the yellow route as it would follow the
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1 fenced roads and do the least damage to all property

2 owners, a shared sacrifice, but the no-build option is

3 the way to go.

4               (Applause)

5               MS. BEAUBIAN:  Thank you.

6               Mr. Don Dixon, please, and then David

7 Schillings, and after that Dan Agan, please.

8                  COMMENTS BY DON DIXON

9               MR. DIXON:  Thank you, Ms. TxDOT.  I

10 appreciate the chance to talk to you.  My name is

11 Don Dixon, and I'm a mechanical engineer and graduated

12 from that fine university right up the road here.

13               And our families, my family and my

14 children, we offer scholar -- are pleased to offer

15 scholarships to needy students at A&M.  And when we talk

16 to those students, they are interested in what they can

17 do to get their costs down.  They are having a hard time

18 with tuition as high as it is.  They are having a hard

19 time with their tuition, so it is certainly not going to

20 be a benefit to the good students of Texas A&M to have

21 to pay a toll to get back and forth to their school or

22 their community.

23               My official position on this is no-build.

24 This is an ill-conceived project.  Can't you see the

25 very, very negative economic impacts for this community,
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1 these landowners, the takings of eminent domain of this

2 magnitude, disrupting these historical farms and ranches

3 and these good people here?  We're Texans.  We can do

4 better than this.

5               TxDOT, in their wisdom, as I understand it

6 in some time past, looked at the safety issues and the

7 connectivity issues in the area, and they looked at 1774

8 and 105 and did considerable work, I understand, to

9 improve that -- the existing right-of-ways so they could

10 improve the safety and connectivity in the area.  You

11 have existing right-of-way already.  Wouldn't that be a

12 logical conclusion if you need this?

13               Listening to some of the things that the

14 people have said over at TxDOT at the Commission -- and

15 don't hold me to this -- but I believe it's $262 million

16 of the gas tax that you-all pay, and we all pay, to get

17 a public road built is going into this project, which

18 would -- most of it or a lot of it would be tolled.

19 This is a double tax.  This is not right.  When the

20 public pays this money into the state system for a

21 public benefit, then it surely should be a totally

22 public benefit and not a double tax.

23               This project is ill-conceived.  It needs

24 to be scrapped, start over, use your -- use your

25 original design back there and treat these people the
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1 way they deserves.

2               (Applause)

3               MS. BEAUBIAN:  Thank you.

4               David Schillings.

5               COMMENTS BY DAVID SCHILLINGS

6               MR. SCHILLINGS:  My name is David

7 Schillings.  I'm speaking on behalf of my mother,

8 Geneva Schillings.  She lives on County Road 307.  Both

9 of these routes severely impact our property.

10               For the record, we are strongly opposed to

11 any toll road through Grimes County anywhere.  But if we

12 had to choose one of these two routes, we would choose

13 the green route, and I just wanted to put that for the

14 record.  Thank you.

15               MS. BEAUBIAN:  Thank you.

16               (Applause)

17               MS. BEAUBIAN:  Dan Agan and then Chad

18 Nobles and also Mark Baldwin, please.

19                   COMMENTS BY DAN AGAN

20               MR. AGAN:  Hello.  My name is Dan Agan.  I

21 live in Spring.  I own property in Grimes County, but

22 that property is not affected by this proposed toll

23 road.  I am here because of principle.

24               You know, I listened to your impassioned

25 presentations as I've heard the same at the transmission
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1 line hearings and at the high-speed rail hearings, and I

2 can imagine and presume the TxDOT reaction is similar to

3 what I heard and it reminded me listening to

4 Michael Beary this morning.  Michael Beary announced

5 that today was the 80th Anniversary of Gone with the

6 Wind.  And there's a very famous line in that movie, and

7 I think that's very representative of TxDOT's feeling

8 about the heritage of your property and your livelihoods

9 and families, and frankly, they don't give a damn.

10               (Applause)

11               MR. AGAN:  I thought the high-speed rail

12 was idiotic, and I see that one of the representatives

13 is here tonight taking notes and observing.  He can

14 quote me.  My name is Dan Agan, and the high-speed rail

15 is idiotic, but I think this toll road may be even

16 worse.  And like I said, I've got no --

17               (Applause)

18               MR. AGAN:  I've got no dog in this fight,

19 but you just go on up here and look at the map and you

20 say, this is crazy, this is lunacy.  You know, the

21 people in Houston -- and I guess I'm one of them --

22 don't have a divine right to get to College Station in

23 an hour.

24               (Applause)

25               MR. AGAN:  You can't tell me that an
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1 expanded 1774 and 105 can't handle whatever additional

2 traffic may be coming about.  The stoplight at 1774 and

3 105 was only put in just a few years ago.  To my

4 knowledge, there is still only one stoplight between

5 where the toll road would intersect at 1774 and where it

6 would intersect at 105.  Surely it is not too much of an

7 inconvenience for the people in Houston and College

8 Station to have to stop at one stoplight on a 15-mile

9 route.

10               You know, early in your presentation, you

11 used the word "undeveloped land" as if undeveloped land

12 was ripe for the taking.  You know, we consider

13 undeveloped land as land that is more valuable than

14 developed land.  It appears to me that we have a

15 situation where we have too many TxDOT bureaucrats with

16 too much public money and too much time in search of a

17 mission that doesn't need to be built.

18               This is, again, one of the most ludicrous

19 ideas I've ever seen.  1774 needs to be widened.  105

20 needs to be widened.  If necessary, build a ramp so that

21 people don't even have to stop at the intersection of

22 1774 and 105 if that's appropriate.  But the people in

23 Texas have spoken, no more toll roads in Texas.  Thank

24 you.

25               (Applause)
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1               MS. BEAUBIAN:  Thank you.

2               Chad Nobles, and after Mr. Nobles, Mark

3 Baldwin and Nancy Perry, please.

4                 COMMENTS BY CHAD NOBLES

5               MR. C. NOBLES:  So for the record, my name

6 is Chad Nobles, and I'm here to express my opposition to

7 Toll Road 249.  I actually had two speeches prepared

8 tonight, and because somebody has talked about two

9 different yellow options and the green option, I'm going

10 to have to address that.

11               In last month's TxDOT meeting -- my family

12 and I, we've been fighting this for a year.  In last

13 month's TxDOT meeting, we learned from the Voss family

14 that you, Chad Bohne, promised him that the land would

15 not go across his property.  He also stated and made

16 the -- he expressed it multiple times, and you told him

17 it wouldn't.  And you know what, you're doing a good job

18 by drawing multiple routes that won't affect his

19 property.  You've also done a good job of dividing the

20 landowners out there along County Road 307.

21               Recently, again, we presented in August of

22 2015, even some of the landowners that have spoken here

23 tonight, where they supported -- we had 90 percent of

24 the landowners along County Road 307 supporting what was

25 then called the southern route.  It was also known as
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1 the black route, and it is almost identical to the

2 yellow route.  90 percent of the landowners in that area

3 supported that, and you still didn't listen to us, and

4 now you've drawn another route.

5               I'm here today to tell you, TxDOT, don't

6 build the toll road.  But I'm also here with 250

7 signatures who want the yellow route.

8               Again, let me remind you that there are

9 only three landowners in the area, the Nobles family,

10 me, my parents and the Bower family, all of us are

11 affected by both routes, we're the only three.  We have

12 all said we want the yellow route.

13               There are many reasons why the yellow

14 route is the best route if you have to build this.  One,

15 it's the least destructive to the permanent residents in

16 the area.  More citizens and property owners want the

17 yellow route if you have to build it.

18               The green route will divide more than

19 700 acres of a large landowner.  The yellow route is

20 truly a shared sacrifice.  We all get property taken

21 away.  Every one of these citizens is having property

22 taken away from you, and it needs to be shared, not

23 divided from one or two landowners.

24               The yellow route does not require TxDOT to

25 build a road or a bridge over County Road 307.  The
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1 green route runs directly on top of our lake, spring-fed

2 lake, which is a water source for our cattle, and you

3 don't even show a bridge over it.  What are you going to

4 do with our water source?  How is the road going to go

5 through our lake?

6               The green route doesn't even show a bridge

7 or give me access to my property.  I have an easement

8 coming from County Road 307, which is how I get across

9 to my property.  You don't even give my access back to

10 my property.  The green route destroys hayfields,

11 timber, yeah, it destroys wild game, high game fences,

12 they all do.  It's a road we don't want.

13               We've turned in numerous signatures over

14 the last year, you've gotten tons of public input.  So

15 why don't you listen to the people of Grimes County and

16 don't build this toll road.  Thank you.

17               (Applause)

18               MS. BEAUBIAN:  Thank you.

19               Mark Baldwin and then Nancy Perry and

20 Tommy Williams, please.

21                 COMMENTS BY MARK BALDWIN

22               MR. BALDWIN:  Hi.  Good evening.  My name

23 is Mark Baldwin, and I'm here representing my wife,

24 Linda Baldwin, and my -- many of her cousins.

25 Unfortunately, she's not able to be here tonight because
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1 she has car trouble and got stuck in the great city of

2 Houston.  Thank you-all for letting us voice our

3 concerns as well.

4               She couldn't -- I'm reading what she wrote

5 to me and sent me.  She could never forgive herself --

6 I'm sorry, I'm getting emotional up here -- if she

7 didn't try to preserve her property that was inherited

8 over generations from her -- her family.  You see the

9 property -- her property, our property, is right at the

10 end of 307, not 307 going to the left like you have it

11 on your maps, but the 307 ends right at the end of the

12 property where we go into our property.  The yellow

13 route just takes the whole property.

14               You see that was historically known as the

15 old -- Huey Old Place Road.  Many people that live in

16 Grimes County know it.  I've been here 40 years.  We've

17 lived in Bryan.  We're down there occasionally as we had

18 planned, and our plan is to hopefully build there.  With

19 the yellow route, no way.  Excuse me.  My cell phone

20 closed on me.  I apologize.  I'm trying to read a

21 smartphone, it's not a real smart person here.

22               Let me read on.  This property was

23 purchased in the 1850s by her great-great-grandfather,

24 Jefferson Edmund Huey passed down to generations through

25 her family.  And many of her ancestors are buried in
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1 Huey Cemetery just a quarter mile away from the property

2 that's being looked at.  Incidentally, access to the

3 cemetery is going to be affected if they build the

4 yellow route.

5               The homestead is gone, but the memories

6 are sentimental, and this property is priceless.  All of

7 my immediate family are deceased.  This property is the

8 only thing she has left from her generation and hope to

9 pass it on, hope to build and pass it on to our

10 children.

11               TxDOT's yellow route not only puts a

12 red -- a road through the property, it will ruin the

13 property as it runs down the entire length of the

14 property.  As -- as a side note, my grandfather divided

15 the whole Huey place into ten long narrow lots, divided

16 it between his children.  So the yellow route doesn't

17 just cross the property, it runs the whole length of it

18 through our property.

19               My wife's read the transcripts of the

20 Transportation Commission meetings and know the concerns

21 her neighbors have and how it's dividing, but I cannot

22 see how it can be justified not to split large acreage

23 by taking someone else's entire acreage.  We do not have

24 a home or property.  We do have history and memories.

25               We say don't build at all, period, end of
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1 discussion.  Thank you.

2               (Applause)

3               MS. BEAUBIAN:  Thank you.

4               Nancy Perry, and then after Ms. Perry is

5 Tommy Williams, please.

6                 COMMENTS BY NANCY PERRY

7               MS. PERRY:  I'm Nancy Perry, and I'm a

8 realtor from Navasota Realty.  And as such, I see a lot

9 of what the repercussions are of this type of

10 development and how much land is worth with or without

11 access, feeder roads, et cetera.

12               I do believe that Grimes County, because

13 of the pending growth, that we do need additional

14 transportation.  I am staunchly against toll roads.

15 Even though I am in favor of 249, I would prefer it to

16 be untolled.

17               My heart goes out to the folks who have

18 property underneath the yellow or the green route.

19 Those people are getting stomped on.  Whenever you have

20 a feeder along a toll road, your property values are

21 three or four times the value of the property that will

22 be -- the value of the property that is adjoining the

23 toll road with no feeders.

24               There is ample opportunity for TxDOT to

25 improve the plan, put more crossovers or unders, to add



June 30, 2016

Associated Court Reporters 979-260-5900

Page 40

1 three and a half or four miles of feeders, which would

2 then enhance the property value of the folks that right

3 now are getting really stepped on hard.

4               So I implore you to look at the

5 possibility of adding more feeders.  And then at least

6 the folks whose dreams are getting squashed could

7 benefit from this, and they could move on and maybe find

8 another piece of property to build their dream on.

9 Thank you.

10               MS. BEAUBIAN:  Thank you.

11               (Applause)

12               MS. BEAUBIAN:  Tommy Williams, and then

13 after Mr. Williams, Dean Eversole and Larry Lynch,

14 please.

15                COMMENTS BY TOMMY WILLIAMS

16               MR. WILLIAMS:  Thank you.  My name is

17 Tommy Williams.  I'm here in two capacities, first as a

18 resident of Grimes County.  I live on FM 3090.  This

19 road is necessary, and I encourage and urge you to move

20 forward with your plans.

21               I want to say that I appreciate the effort

22 that's gone into listening to these folks.  And with all

23 respect, I know there's a lot of raw emotion here, and I

24 appreciate and respect that and understand how those

25 folks feel.
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1               I would also mention that I represented

2 Grimes County as well as Montgomery, Waller and Madison

3 Counties in the Legislature for six years, and I can

4 tell you that I've seen firsthand in Montgomery County

5 what happens when the roads don't keep up with the

6 growth.  And the growth is coming this way, and we don't

7 have the capacity in Grimes County to handle the traffic

8 that's coming our way without this road.

9               I'd also like to speak to you in the time

10 that's remaining as the Vice Chancellor for Federal and

11 State Relations for the Texas A&M University System.

12 And I'm here on behalf of our Chancellor, John Sharp,

13 and our Board of Regents to urge TxDOT to move forward

14 with this plan.  We think it's very important to the

15 Brazos Valley and to the Texas A&M University System

16 that we have improved access to the Houston region.

17 It's not just a matter of time, it's a matter of safety

18 also.  And there are thousands of people who travel this

19 route on a regular basis, and that's only going to

20 increase as we move forward in the future.

21               So as part of the record, I want to

22 provide to you all a resolution that was passed by our

23 regents on April 17, 2013 encouraging the completion of

24 this project.  Thank you for your time.

25               MS. BEAUBIAN:  Thank you.
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1               (Applause)

2               MS. BEAUBIAN:  Dean Eversole, and then

3 Larry Lynch, please.

4                COMMENTS BY DEAN EVERSOLE

5               MR. EVERSOLE:  Yes, my name is Dean

6 Eversole.  I represent my family.  We live at the end of

7 County Road 307.  We -- our families have -- we want the

8 no-build.  We don't want the toll road in the middle of

9 the county disrupting our lives.  But TxDOT, y'all did a

10 great job with all the routes y'all put on us.

11               Joe Knauth, bless his heart, was my

12 Christian brother until the toll roads got between him

13 and me, and we became enemies and he died with a heart

14 attack.  I never had a chance to make amends with him.

15 But TxDOT, y'all did a great job, great job of

16 destroying people's lives.  And I'm not happy with it.

17 I'm not happy with it at all.  He lies between the green

18 route and the yellow route.  So either way he was going

19 to get nipped on this side or get nipped on that side.

20               We are at the end, so y'all come across

21 and cut our -- the Hueys said that, you know, the

22 history of their land.  Well, we bought four 17-acre

23 tracts of the Huey property.  Joe Knauth died.  He

24 bought three tracts from them.

25               I have a commercial hay barn there, and I
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1 don't -- you know, y'all had the famous -- what was

2 it -- the blue route where you were going to come across

3 my lake.  Now, I've been affected from day one with this

4 stuff.

5               But to get back to the real problem here

6 is, TxDOT, y'all didn't listen to us, y'all didn't

7 listen to us at all.  I don't know why we waste our

8 time.  Y'all can what, eminent domain our property.

9 I've been to Austin a few times listening to y'all.  It

10 takes -- I hear everybody, you know, yays or nays.

11 Y'all take people's property in five seconds.  Forty --

12 the last time I was there 47 tracts of land y'all took

13 in five seconds.  You didn't care.  Y'all take what you

14 want.

15               But at the end of 307, my family lives

16 past -- my sons, daughter-in-law and two grandsons, we

17 don't care.  We would rather see y'all take -- if you've

18 got to build, take the yellow route, cut my family off,

19 I'll move them over to the big place where y'all really

20 wanted the toll road to be but couldn't make it happen

21 because of a cemetery and a lake.

22               So, TxDOT, I just wish that somehow or

23 other y'all would listen to these people.  These people

24 are fine people here.  These people, we may be poor, but

25 we're still pride, we still have our pride.  That land
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1 means something to us.  And, you know, we love our land,

2 but we don't want freeways and everything else in the

3 middle of it.

4               And my last statement is, I know why TxDOT

5 wanted to have this meeting in here tonight because

6 y'all had a picture on the wall of who y'all are.

7 That's all I have to say.  My name is Dean Eversole.

8 Thank you.

9               (Applause)

10               MS. BEAUBIAN:  Thank you.

11               Larry Lynch, please.

12                 COMMENTS BY LARRY LYNCH

13               MR. LYNCH:  My name is Larry Lynch, and I

14 live in Plantersville/Stoneham area.  What I'd like to

15 say and what I've been saying every meeting I went into,

16 I'm totally opposed to the toll roads.  There's no

17 reason for us to be building toll roads in Grimes

18 County.

19               This past summer I went through 13 states

20 and drove 7200 miles.  I paid $7.45 for toll; one $5 to

21 go across a toll road -- a bridge in California, and the

22 other one was $2.45 to go 40 miles on the road in

23 Kansas.  You know, now if the other states can do

24 without toll roads, we can, too.

25               When I think of the toll road, I think of
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1 somebody on Wall Street that's getting a package deal

2 for foreign investors or other investors so somebody can

3 make -- make money instead of caring about what's

4 happening to the people that own the land and live in

5 Grimes County.

6               Everybody always mentions College Station.

7 Well, people in Grimes County don't want College Station

8 managing the business over here.  And as far as

9 somebody -- safety on the road, if somebody is going

10 from Houston to College Station, the way I feel about it

11 is hold it on the road.

12               So when you get toll roads, do they come

13 by and ask everybody if they can raise the toll?  Do you

14 have a state commission that let's them raise the toll?

15 You know, people talk about when the highway is built

16 they are not going to have access to the property,

17 somebody hadn't put a bridge on the map.  I tell you why

18 the bridge is not on the map and the property access is

19 not there, because you've got investment people on Wall

20 Street planning these highways in Grimes County instead

21 of the engineers that work at TxDOT.

22               I'm sure everybody at TxDOT wants to build

23 a lot of toll roads, they want a lot of roads built and

24 going on because they're going to need -- even though

25 somebody else may build the road, they're going to play
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1 a part in it.  You're going to need more people working,

2 there's going to be more manager's jobs, it's going to

3 raise some pocketbooks.  But the people here in Grimes

4 county it's not going to help.

5               If you build the -- build the road, don't

6 build the toll.  Expand 1774 and 105 and you've got the

7 problem solved, if there is a problem.  Thank you.

8               (Applause)

9               MR. BOHNE:  That is all the cards that we

10 have.  Is there anyone who did not get an opportunity to

11 speak who would still like to?

12               (No response)

13               MR. BOHNE:  Seeing none, we will close the

14 public hearing comment period, and your additional

15 written comments are encouraged and welcomed.  They must

16 be postmarked on or before Thursday, July 14, 2016 to be

17 included in the official hearing record.  After July 14,

18 2016, we'll review the information received and prepare

19 a report summarizing this public hearing.

20               TxDOT anticipates selecting a final route

21 by late summer.  The public hearing report and final

22 route selection will be made available for public

23 review.  Notice of the decision and availability of the

24 report will be provided to the media and posted on our

25 website.
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1               On behalf of TxDOT, thank you for

2 attending tonight's hearing and providing your comments.

3 Our staff will be located near the exhibit boards --

4 exhibit board displays to answer remaining questions you

5 may have.

6               Thank you, and please travel home safely.

7               (Proceedings concluded at 7:36 p.m.)
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STATE HIGHWAY 249
GRIMES COUNTY
PUBLIC HEARING

JUNE 30, 2016



Footer Text Date

SH 249 TOLL ROAD
FROM FM 1774 TO SH 105

GRIMES COUNTY

Public Hearing Schedule:

� 5:30pm–6:30pm – Open House in Cafeteria

� 6:30pm – Project Presentation and Formal 

Public Comment in Gym

JUNE 30, 2016

Traducción Español está 

disponible para el presentación  

del proyecto y comentario público 

formal. Por favor, visite la mesa 

de registro de asistencia.
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Roadway Typical Sections

Proposed right-of-way (ROW) would accommodate a 4-lane divided roadway

PROPOSED TYPICAL SECTION PROPOSED TYPICAL SECTION PROPOSED TYPICAL SECTION PROPOSED TYPICAL SECTION –––– SUPER 2 PASSING LANESUPER 2 PASSING LANESUPER 2 PASSING LANESUPER 2 PASSING LANE

(TYPICAL RIGHT(TYPICAL RIGHT(TYPICAL RIGHT(TYPICAL RIGHT----OFOFOFOF----WAY WIDTH = 400 FEET)WAY WIDTH = 400 FEET)WAY WIDTH = 400 FEET)WAY WIDTH = 400 FEET)

PROPOSED TYPICAL SECTION PROPOSED TYPICAL SECTION PROPOSED TYPICAL SECTION PROPOSED TYPICAL SECTION –––– SUPER 2 PASSING LANE WITH FRONTAGE ROADSSUPER 2 PASSING LANE WITH FRONTAGE ROADSSUPER 2 PASSING LANE WITH FRONTAGE ROADSSUPER 2 PASSING LANE WITH FRONTAGE ROADS

URBANOSKY LANE TO WEST OF CR 304URBANOSKY LANE TO WEST OF CR 304URBANOSKY LANE TO WEST OF CR 304URBANOSKY LANE TO WEST OF CR 304

(TYPICAL RIGHT(TYPICAL RIGHT(TYPICAL RIGHT(TYPICAL RIGHT----OFOFOFOF----WAY WIDTH = 450 FEET)WAY WIDTH = 450 FEET)WAY WIDTH = 450 FEET)WAY WIDTH = 450 FEET)
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Project History

� 2013201320132013

– SH 249 Working Group SH 249 Working Group SH 249 Working Group SH 249 Working Group 
establishedestablishedestablishedestablished

– SH 249 Recommendations SH 249 Recommendations SH 249 Recommendations SH 249 Recommendations 
Report Report Report Report 

– Northern Option (Green) Northern Option (Green) Northern Option (Green) Northern Option (Green) 
recommended as refined      recommended as refined      recommended as refined      recommended as refined      
Study Study Study Study Area Area Area Area 

– Public Meeting on 10/29/13Public Meeting on 10/29/13Public Meeting on 10/29/13Public Meeting on 10/29/13

– Public comment provided new Public comment provided new Public comment provided new Public comment provided new 
environmental constraints and environmental constraints and environmental constraints and environmental constraints and 
potential routespotential routespotential routespotential routes
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Project History

� 2014201420142014

– Public Meeting on 4/3/14Public Meeting on 4/3/14Public Meeting on 4/3/14Public Meeting on 4/3/14

– Six project alternatives presentedSix project alternatives presentedSix project alternatives presentedSix project alternatives presented

– Initial recommendation Alternative B3Initial recommendation Alternative B3Initial recommendation Alternative B3Initial recommendation Alternative B3

– Public comment prompted additional Public comment prompted additional Public comment prompted additional Public comment prompted additional 

alternative evaluation and analysis alternative evaluation and analysis alternative evaluation and analysis alternative evaluation and analysis 

– Additional analysis recommended a hybrid Additional analysis recommended a hybrid Additional analysis recommended a hybrid Additional analysis recommended a hybrid 

alternative as the preferred alternativealternative as the preferred alternativealternative as the preferred alternativealternative as the preferred alternative

Six Project Alternatives

Hybrid Alternative
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Project History

� TxDOT refined hybrid alternative between CR 304 

and CR 306 based on public input and developed 

additional alternatives

� TxDOT recommended the Blue Alternative in  

October 2015

� The evidence of extensive grave sites and potential 

stream impacts eliminated the consideration of a 

portion of the  Blue Alternative

� TxDOT is presenting two alignment alternatives 

(Blue/Green Alternative and Blue/Yellow Alternative) 

for public input

� One alternative will be selected

TODAYTODAYTODAYTODAY:  June 30, 2016 – Public Hearing:
Grave Sites
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SH 249 Recommended Alternatives from FM 1774 to SH 105

Component Unit
Build Alternatives

Blue/Green Blue/Yellow

Estimated 

Construction Cost
Millions of Dollars 164.9 170.4

Length of Proposed 

Roadway
Miles 9.9 10.4

Estimated Right-of-

Way Acquisition
Acres 623 658

Relocations
Number of 

Relocations
0 0

Affected Parcels Number of Parcels 35 40

Cemeteries Number of Cemeteries 0 0

Vegetation Impacts Acres of Impact 112.3 118.7

Stream Crossings Number of Crossings 13 13

Stream Impacts Linear Feet of Streams 10,277 11,353

Floodplain Crossings Acreage 11.9 15.7
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Public Hearing Next Steps and Timeline

Next Steps:Next Steps:Next Steps:Next Steps:

– After the public hearing, TxDOT will review public comments received from 

this hearing regarding the final alternative  

– The public hearing report will be posted to the TxDOT website when the 

analysis is complete

MILESTONE DATE

Public Hearing June 30, 2016

Environmental Decision Summer 2016

Anticipated Construction Start Summer 2017
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Give us Your Feedback

1.   Give 1.   Give 1.   Give 1.   Give comment comment comment comment cards cards cards cards to TxDOT staff to TxDOT staff to TxDOT staff to TxDOT staff tonighttonighttonighttonight

2.   Provide 2.   Provide 2.   Provide 2.   Provide verbal comments verbal comments verbal comments verbal comments during formal comment period:during formal comment period:during formal comment period:during formal comment period:

• Raise your hand or see a staff member to receive and complete a Speaker Registration CardSpeaker Registration CardSpeaker Registration CardSpeaker Registration Card

• When your name is called, proceed to the microphone or raise your hand if you need assistance

• Comments will be limited to 3 minutes

• A court reporter will record your comment

3.   Mail 3.   Mail 3.   Mail 3.   Mail comments tocomments tocomments tocomments to::::

TxDOT Bryan District Office, Attention: SH 249 – Grimes 

2591 North Earl Rudder Freeway

Bryan, Texas 77803

4.   Submit electronic comments online: 4.   Submit electronic comments online: 4.   Submit electronic comments online: 4.   Submit electronic comments online: 

http://http://http://http://www.txdot.gov/insidewww.txdot.gov/insidewww.txdot.gov/insidewww.txdot.gov/inside----txdot/projects/studies/bryan/sh249.htmltxdot/projects/studies/bryan/sh249.htmltxdot/projects/studies/bryan/sh249.htmltxdot/projects/studies/bryan/sh249.html

or scan this code with your tablet or phone:

Options for CommentingOptions for CommentingOptions for CommentingOptions for Commenting

Deadline for comments for inclusion in Deadline for comments for inclusion in Deadline for comments for inclusion in Deadline for comments for inclusion in public hearing reportpublic hearing reportpublic hearing reportpublic hearing report:  :  :  :  July 14, July 14, July 14, July 14, 2016 2016 2016 2016 
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Public Hearing Process

� Open HouseOpen HouseOpen HouseOpen House (cafeteria)(cafeteria)(cafeteria)(cafeteria) –––– 5:30 pm 5:30 pm 5:30 pm 5:30 pm –––– 6:30 pm:6:30 pm:6:30 pm:6:30 pm:

– Review project layouts  and Question/Answer with project staffReview project layouts  and Question/Answer with project staffReview project layouts  and Question/Answer with project staffReview project layouts  and Question/Answer with project staff

– Fill out a public hearing speaker Fill out a public hearing speaker Fill out a public hearing speaker Fill out a public hearing speaker card at the registration card at the registration card at the registration card at the registration table if interestedtable if interestedtable if interestedtable if interested

� Public HearingPublic HearingPublic HearingPublic Hearing (gymnasium) (gymnasium) (gymnasium) (gymnasium) –––– 6:30 pm:6:30 pm:6:30 pm:6:30 pm:

– Brief presentation and formal public comment period:Brief presentation and formal public comment period:Brief presentation and formal public comment period:Brief presentation and formal public comment period:

• TTTThe formal comment period is to collect commentshe formal comment period is to collect commentshe formal comment period is to collect commentshe formal comment period is to collect comments

• Speakers will have three minutes to provide commentsSpeakers will have three minutes to provide commentsSpeakers will have three minutes to provide commentsSpeakers will have three minutes to provide comments

• In accordance with TxDOT public hearing policy, TxDOT will not verbally In accordance with TxDOT public hearing policy, TxDOT will not verbally In accordance with TxDOT public hearing policy, TxDOT will not verbally In accordance with TxDOT public hearing policy, TxDOT will not verbally 

respond to verbal comments collected during the formal comment respond to verbal comments collected during the formal comment respond to verbal comments collected during the formal comment respond to verbal comments collected during the formal comment periodperiodperiodperiod

• Responses Responses Responses Responses to collected comments will be addressed to collected comments will be addressed to collected comments will be addressed to collected comments will be addressed in in in in the Public Hearing the Public Hearing the Public Hearing the Public Hearing 

Summary ReportSummary ReportSummary ReportSummary Report

• Following the proceeding, staff will be available at the layouts for Following the proceeding, staff will be available at the layouts for Following the proceeding, staff will be available at the layouts for Following the proceeding, staff will be available at the layouts for 

Question/Answer Question/Answer Question/Answer Question/Answer discussiondiscussiondiscussiondiscussion


